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EXHIBIT A.

Georgia, Dougherty County.
The State of Georgia }Indictment for Murder.

V. In Superior Court Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Frank. Motion for New Trial.

Before me personally appeared R. L. Gremer, who being duly sworn de-
poses and says that he makes this affidavit to be used on the motion for new
trial in the above case.

Further deposing he says that he is a resident of Albany, Ga., that he is
acquainted with Mack Farkas, who works with Mr. Sam Farkas, who operates
a livery stable and sale barn in Albany.

Further deposing, he says that between the time of the murder of Mary
Phagan, and the trial of Leo M. Frank, the exact date this deponent can not
state, deponent wds standing in front of Mr. Sam Farkas’s place of business
on Broad Street in Albany, in the presence of Mack Farkas and others, includ-
ing a party by the name of A. II. ITenslee; said Ilenslee is the same party
whose picture appears on page 2 of the Atlanta Georgian issue of August the
26th, and on page 2 of the issue of the same paper of August 23rd, as a juror
in the Frank case.

At said time and place, deponent heard the said Ilenslee express his con-
viction that Frank was guilty of the murder of Mary Phagan; his exact lan-
guage was ‘‘there can be no doubt that Frank is guilty. I know he is guilty,”’
referring to the murder of Mary Phagan. —

Further deposing he says, he stated to said Henslee ‘It is queer that a
man of Frank’s standing could be guilty of such a crime.”’ Ilenslee said,
““Without a doubt he is guilty.”’ Deponent said ‘“ What do you mean by with-
out a doubt?’’ Henslee said positively, ‘Without a doubt to my mind or to
anyone else.”’

: e e : " R. L. GREMER.
Sworn to and subseribed before me

Sept. 4th, 1913.
, L. L. FORD,
Notary Public Dougherty County, Georgia.

EXHIBIT B.

(Georgia, Dougherty County.

State of Georgia, Indictment for Murder. X
V. - } In Superior Court Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Frank. Motion for New Trial.

Before me, personally appeared Mack Farkas, who being duly sworn
makes this affidavit, to be used on the motion for a new trial in the above case.

Deposing, he says that he is a resident of Albany, Ga., and is connected
with Sam Farkas, Esq., who runs a livery stable and sale barn in Albany ; fur-
ther deposing, he says that between the time of the murder of Mary Phagan,

“and the trial of Leo Frank, he heard a party discussing the case in front of

the place of business of the said Sam Farkas, in Albany, Ga., in the presence of
this deponent and others, including one R. L. Gremer, also a resident of Al-
bany, Ga., said party, whom this deponent recollects as being named Henslee,
and whose picture appears on page 2 of the Atlanta Georgian of August 23rd,
and on page 2 of the Atlanta Georgian of August 26th, as being one of the
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Frank jury, expressed himself as being convinced of Leo M. Frank’s guilt
of the murder of Mary Phagan; the exact language used by said party, depon-
ent does not recollect, but his recollection is that he used the words ‘‘I believe
Frank is guilty,”’ referring to the murder of Mary Phagan.
MACK FARKAS.

Sworn to and subscribed before me

this September 4, 1913.

L. L. FORD,

Notary Public Dougherty County, Georgia. .

. = EXHIBIT C.

Georgia, Fulton County.
State of Georgia,

VS. % Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank,

Personally appears Julian A. Lehman, who being duly sworn makes this
affidavit to be used on the motion for new trial in the above case.

Further deposing he says that he is personally acquainted with A. TI.
ITenslee, one of the jurors in the above casc; that on June 2, 1913, between
Atlanta, Ga., and Experiment, Ga., the said IIenslee expressed his opinion that
Frank was guilty of the murder of Mary Phagan, and that this was in depon-
cnt’s presence and hearing; and in the hearing of other persons on the train
at the time; the words used to the best of deponent’s knowledge and recollec-
tion were ‘‘Frank is as guilty as a damned dog, and ought to have his God
damned neck broke’’; this was in reference to Leo M. Frank, and before the
trial.

Again, on June 20, 1913, the said Ilenslee made practically the same state-
ment of and concerning the connection of Leo M. Frank with the murder of
Mary Phagan in deponent’s hearing. ;

On both occasions the said Henslee showed great feeling, he expressed the
aforesaid conviction firmly and positively and vehemently.

JULIAN A. LEHMAN.

&
]
T
;
J
A
¢
;
g

-
R

Sworn to and subscribed hefore me, this the
12th day of September, 1913.
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,
Notary Public Fulton County, Georgia.

EXHIBIT D.

State of Georgia, County of Fulton.
State of Georgia,

V8. - } In Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank.

Before me, the undersigned officer authorized by law to administer oaths,
personally appeared Samuel Aron, who being first duly sworn, deposes and says
on oath as follows:

Deponent says that just after the indictment of Leo M. Frank for murder,
as near as he can recall about two days after the indictment, this deponent
was at the Elks Club on Ellis Street, Atlanta, Georgia; that at that time he
saw one A. H. Henslee, not then known to this deponent by name, but now
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known and recognized by this deponent as one of the jurors who tried the
Frank case and returned a verdict of guilty; said A. H. Henslee was at said
Elks Club at the time mentioned, and made the statement in this deponent’s
hearing: ‘‘I am glad they indicted the God dam Jew. They ought tq take
him out and lynch him, And if I get on that jury I’d hang that Jew sure.’
This statement was made in connection with the indictment of Leo M. Frank
for the murder of Mary Phagan, and made in this deponent S hearing by the
said A. H. Henslee, who afterwards served on said jury and brought in a ver-
dict of guilty.

At this time this deponent left the Club, not caring to get into the argu-
ment, which was becoming heated and which was very condemnatory of Leo
M. Frank by the said A. II. Ilenslee.

SAMUEL ARON.

Sworn to and subseribed before me
this 3rd day of October, A.D. 1913.
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,

“Notary Public Fulton County, Georgia.

EXHIBIT E.

State of Georgia, County of Fulton.
State of Georgia,

vs., } Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank. — '

Before me personally appear L. Z. Rosser, Morris Brandon, R. R. Arnold,
and H. J. Haas, who, being duly sworn, depose and say that they are the
sole counsel of defendant in the above case, and they make this affidavit to be
_used as evidence on the motion for new trial in said case. )

Further “deposing, they say that, since the trial of said case and
the verdict and sentence therein, it has come to their knowledge that two
of the jurars who sat on said case, to-wit: M. Johenning and A. H. Henslee,
were prejudiced, partial and biased against Leo M. Frank, the defendant
as evidenced by affidavits attached to motion and hereinafter referred to; tha.t
said prejudice, partiality and bias were present on their part, when sald Jo-
henning and Henslee qualified as jurors in said case as shown by said affida-
vits, but that the facts were unknown to these deponents at the time of the trial
of said case, and at the time said jurors qualified on the voir dire of said case;
and these deponents had no means of knowing said facts until after said trial.

Further deposing, they say that not until after the trial of said case did
they know or have any means of knowing that said Johenning and Henslee,

“or either of them, had made any statement of any kind to, or in the presence

of, any of the following persons, to-wit: H. C. Lovenhart, Mrs. J. G. Loven-
hart, Miss Mariam Lovenhart, S. Aron, Mack Farkas, R. L. Gremer, Jno. M.
Holmes, Shi Gray, S. M. Johnson, J. J. Nunnally, W. L. Ricker, J. A. Lehman,
C. P. Stough, or any other person, of and concerning said Leo Frank in con-
nection with the murder of Mary Phagan, or in connection with said trial, or
the possible outcome of said trial.

Further deposing they say that t they have been guilty of no laches in this
matter, but that they have used every means of obtaining the facts in connec-
tion w1th statements made by said persons, and all of them, and all of said
statements have come to their knowledge since the rendition of the verdict and
sentence in said case, as is shown by the dates mentioned in the jurats to each
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affidavit, and deponents have brought same to the attention of the Court at
the earliest possible moment at which the Court could take cognizance of said
affidavits after the trial, which is the date on which the rule ni si is on return;
that is, October 4, 1913, same being on that day presented to the Court as part
of the motion for new trial. _

Further deposing, deponents say that, had they known at the trial of any
of the facts or statements of the Jurors, which would disqualify, or tend to
disqualify, said jurors, or either of them, whet said jurors were put upon
the voir dire in said case, these deponents would have brought the same to the
attention of the Court at said time.

L. Z. ROSSER,
MORRIS BRANDON,
REUBEN R. ARNOLD
: HERBERT J. HAAS.
Sworn to and subscribed before me,
by each of the above four-named
~deponents, this October 22, 1913.
E. D. THOMAS, _
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia,

EXHIBIT F.
Georgia, Fulton County. _
State of Georgia,
VS. Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank.

Personally appeared Mrs. Jennie G. Loevenhart, who makes this affidavit
to be used on motion for a new trial in the above stated case.
Deposing on oath she says that she is personally acquainted with M.

Johenning, one of the jurors who served in the trial of Leo M. Frank for the '

~murder of Mary Phagan. -~ - -

Further deposing she says that during May, 1913, said M. J ohenning met
deponent and deponent’s daughter on Forsyth Street, Atlanta, Georgia, and
then and there the said M. Johenning expressed to the deponent and depon-
ent’s daughter his firm belief that Leo M. Frank was guilty of the murder of
Mary Phagan. This statement was made by M. Johenning forceably and posi-
tively as his profound conviction.

‘ ' MRS. JENNIE G. LOEVENHART.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 26th day of September, 1913.
C. W. BURKE,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia.

" EXHIBIT G.
Georgia, Fulton County.
State of Georgia,
VS. Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank. '
_ Before me personally appeared H. C. Loevenhart, who makes this affidavit
- to be used on motion for a new trial in the above stated case.
Deposing on oath he says that for some.eighteen months prior to July,
1913, he was connected with the Hodges Broom Works in the city of Atlanta;

126

)

% 4

’

-

L




that he is personally acquainted with M. Johenning, one of the jurors in the
above stated case, and that during the month of May, 1913, said M. Johen-
ning had a conversation with this deponent, in which he discussed the death
of little Mary Phagan. _

Further deposing he- says that in said conversation the said juror, M.
Johenning, expressed his opinion to deponent that Frank was guilty of the
murder of Mary Phagan, and that it was his profound conviction.

H. C. LOEVENHART.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 2nd day of September, 1913.
C. W. BURKE,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia.

o~

EXHIBIT H.

Georgia, Fulton County.

State of Georgia, 1
V8.
Leo M. Frank. s

Before me personally appeared Miss Miriam Loevenhart, who makes this
affidavit to be used on motion for a new trial in the above stated case.

Deposing on oath she says that she is personally acquainted with M. Jo-
henning, a juror, who served in the above stated case; she says that prior to
the trial of Leo M. Frank, said juror, M. Johenning, had a conversation with
this deponent and deponent’s mother, and in their presence expressed his pro-
found conviction that Leo M. Frank was certainly guilty of the murder of
Mary Phagan.

Further deposing she says that said M. Johenning made this statement,
__positively, almost vehemently, and that his exact language, which was in re-
“sponse to a remark from this deponent in reference to the case was, as near
as deponent recalls, ‘‘I know that he is guilty,”’ referring to Leo Frank. Said
M. Johenning made this statement more than once to this deponent before the
commencement of the trial of Leo M. Frank for murder.

' o ~ MIRIAM LOEVENHART.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 2d day of September, 1913.
C. W. BURKE, '
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia.

Fulton-Superior Court.

EXHIBIT I

Georgia, Fulton County.
State of Georgia, %Jn Fulton Superior Court.

; V8. Convietion of Murder.
T.eo M. Frank. July Term, 1913. Motion for New Trial.

Personally ¢ame before the undersigned, Leo M. Frank, who upon oath
“says that he is the defendant in the above stated case, and that his sole coun-
sel in said case were L. Z. Rosser, -Morris Brandon, R. R. Arnold and H. J.
Haas.
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Affiant further says that at and before said trial was entered on, amd dur-
ing the whole of said trial that affiant had no knowledge whatsoever as to M.
Johenning and A. H. Henslee, two of the jurors, being prejudiced, partial and
biased in said case, as evidenced by the affidavits of H. C. Lovenhart, Mrs.
J. C. Lovenhart, Miss Marian Lovenhart, S. Aron, Max Farkas, R. L. Grener,
John W. Holmes, Shi Gray, 5. M. Johnson, J. J. Nunnally, W. L. Ricker, J. A.
Lehman, and C. P. Stough. Affiant did not know either of said jurors and had
never seen or heard of them before.

Further Jdeposing, affiant says that he did not know until after the trial,
and did not/have any means of knowing until after said trial, that said Johen-
ning and sald Henslee, or either of them, had made any statement of any kind
to or in th¢/presence of any of the persons hereinbefore named. Affiant fur-
ther says t before said trial, at the time of entering upon said trial, and
‘during said trial, he had no knowledge or means of knowing that said persons
were prejudiced, partial or biased as is shown by the affidavits or depositions
of the persons named, and the facts stated in said affidavits and depositicus were
unknown to this affiant until after the verdict and sentence in this case. Ile fur-
ther says that he has been guilty of no laches in this matter, and has, together
with his counsel, used all the means at hand to obtain the facts and circum-
stances in connection with the statements made by said parties and all of them,
The said facts were discovered after the verdict and sentence of the court in the
case above stated, and the affidavits of said witnesses were taken on the dates
shown in the jurat to each affidavit, and the same are brought to the attention
of the Court by being presented on the day for the return of the rule nisi, which
is October 4th, 1913, and which is the earliest time at which such affidavits
could be brought to the attention of the Court. —

“Affiant further says that had he known at the trial of any facts or state-
ments which would disqualify, or tend to disqualify, said jurors, or either of
them, when said juors were upon their voir dire in said case, that this affiant
would have had his counsel bring the same to the attention of the Court
promptly at that time.

' LEO M. FRANK.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 3rd day of October, 1913.
SAML. H. BREWTON,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia.

EXHIBIT J.

Georgia, Fulton County.
State of Georgia, }

Versus
Leo M. Frank.

Personally appeared W. P. Neill, who makes this afidavit to be used on
a motion for new trial in the above stated case.

Deposing he says on oath that he was present in the court-room during the
trial of Leo M. Frank for the murder of Mary Phagan, for two full days dur-
ing the trial, and from time to time on other days; that at the time of the facts

+hereinafter stated, deponent was sitting just where the jury passed by going
from the jury box to the rear end of the court-room, he was sitting on the front
row of the spectators’ benches. “

Fulton Superior Court.
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During the course of the trial deponent saw the jury pass to the jury box
from the rear of the court room, the jury passed immediately by this depon-
ent and also by a man, whose name is unknown to this deponent, but who was
a spectator in the court-room, who was sitting about three feet from this de-
ponent, just across the aisle, no one being between this man and deponent;
as the jury passed this man, at the time specified, this man took hold of one
of the jurors, he took the juror by the hand with one hand and grasped his-arm
with the other hand and made a statement to him, said something to the juror
which this deponent did not understand sufficiently to be able to quote, but
this deponent says that he made some statement to the juror while he had him
thus by the hand and arm.

Further deposing he says that this act was witnessed by Plennie Minor,
so this deponent believes, for the reason that as soon as this happened, the said
Plennie Minor immediately came back to this man and threatened to put him
out of the court.

Plennie Minor told this man that he, Plennie Minor, saw him, the man, take
the juror by the hand and say something to him; the man remonstrated with
Plennie Minor, and this deponent heard Plennie Minor repeat to him that he,
Plennie Minor, saw him, the man, speak to the juror.

Deponent further says that on two occasions, while he was sitting in the
court-room, at the trial, at one time while he was about six to ten feet from the
jury, this deponent heard shouts and cheering on the outside of the house from
the-crowds collected outside. One of said times was during Dorsey’s speech.

While this deponent does not say whether or not the jury heard this
cheering, he does say that he, the depoment, heard it; plainly and distinetly
and was within a few feet of the jury at the time he heard it. .

_ W. P. NEILL.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this September 9, 1913.
VIRLYN B. MOORE,
Notary Publie, Fulton County, Georgia. -

Further deposing he says that on an occasion he heard cheering in the
court-room ; the Judge said that unless the cheering stopped he would have
to clear the court-room; and to this, Deputy Sheriff Minor replied that that
would be the only way he could stop the cheering in the court-room.

' 'W. P. NEILL.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this September 9, 1913.
VIRLYN B. MOORE,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia.

'EXHIBIT K.

Georgia, Fulton County.

The State of Georgia
VS. } Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank.

Personally appeared before the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for
said county, B. M. Kay, who on oath says that he is a resident of the city of
Atlanta, living at No. 264 South Pryor Street. "Deponent says further that on
Saturday evening, August 23, 1913, about 8 or 8:30 o’clock, p. m., he was driv-
ing in his father’s automobile down South Pryor Street, going south, there
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being in the automobile with him his mother, Mrs. Rose Kay, and his brother,
"Sampson Kay; that as the automobile approached the corner of South Pryor
and East Fair Streets, he observed the jurymen in the Frank case turn into
South Pryor from the east, out of East Fair Street, and deponent stopped his
automobile to look at the jury, and upon doing so noticed that walking along-
side the jury were some six or seven other men. Deponent was on the west
side of South Pryor Street while the jury in the above entitled case was walk-
ing north along the east side of Pryor Street. Deponent’s brother Sampson
Kay got out of the automobile stating to deponent that he was going to follow

the jury.
B. M. KAY.

Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 4th day of September, 1913.
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia.

EXHIBIT L.
Georgia, Fulton County.
The State of Georgia
Vs, } Fulton Superior Court.
L.eo M. Frank.

Personally appeared before the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for
said county, Miss Martha Kay, who on oath says that on the last day of the
-trial of Leo M. Frank in above stated case, August 25th, 1913, she was pres-
ent in the court room and when the audience applauded Judge Roan stated
to the sheriff that the cheering and demonstrations would have to stop or the
court room would have to be cleared, to which the sheriff replied, ‘‘Your
Honor, that is the only way it can be stopped.’’ _

MARTHA KAY.

Sworn to and subseribed before me
this 3d day of September, 1913.
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia.

. EXHIBIT M.
Georgia, Fulton County.
The State of Georgia
V8. } Fulton Superior Court.

Leo M. Frank.

Personally appeared before the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for
said county Mrs. A. Shurman, who on oath says that on the last day of the
trial of Leo M. Frank in above stated case, August 25th, 1913, she was present

in the court room when the audience applauded. Judge Roan stated to the
sheriff that the cheering and demonstrations would have to stop or the court
room would have to be cleared, to which the sheriff replied ‘“Your Honor,

that is the only way it can be stopped.’’ .
o ' MRS. A. SHURMAN.

Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 3d day of September, 1913.
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,
Notary Publie, Fulton County, Georgia.
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EXHIBIT N.

Georgia, Fulton County.

The State of Georgia
_ VS, Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank. :

Personally appeared before the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for
said county, Mrs. A. Shurman, who on oath says that she is a resident of
the city of Atlanta, living at No. 240 Central Avenue. Deponent says that
. on Monday morning, August 25th, 1913, the last day of the trial of the said

Leo M. Frank, in the above stated cause, she was present in the court voom
in company with Miss Martha Kay, of No. 264 South Pryor Street, before
time for court to open; that she saw the jury in said case enter said court
room and take their places, and in a few moments Mr. ITugh M. Dorsey, the
Solicitor-General of said court entered the room, just before he entered the
room there was loud cheering in the street immediately outside the court
house for ‘‘Dorsey,”” all of which was loud and long continued and plainly
audible to any one in the court room; as Mr. Dorsey entered the court room
there was also cheering in said court room. There was also applauding in
the course of Mr. Dorsey’s speech a couple of times on said date.
MRS. A. SHURMAN.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 3d day of September, 1913.
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,
Notary Publie,-Fulton County, Georgia.

EXHIBIT O.

Georgia, Fulton County.

The State of Georgia
_ VS. Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank.

Personally appeared before the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for
said county, Miss Martha Kay, who on oath says that she is a resident of the
city of Atlanta, living at No. 264 South Pryor Street. ‘Deponent says that on
Monday morning, August 25th, 1913, the last day of the trial of the said Leo
M. Frank in the above stated case, she was present in the court room in
company with Mrs. A. Shurman of No. 240 Central Avenue, before time for
court to open; that she saw the jury in sai i urt-room and
take their places, and in a few moments Mr. Hugh M. Dorsey, the Solicitor-
General of said court entered the room, just before he entered the room there
was loud cheering in the street immediately outside the court house for
“Dorsey,’” all of which was loud and long continued and plainly audible to
anyone in the court room; as Mr. Dorsey entered the court room there was
also cheering in said court room. There was also applauding in the course
of Mr. Dorsey’s speech a couple of times on said date.

MARTHA KAY.

Sworn to and subseribed before me
this 3d day of September, 1913.
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,

NotaryWulton County, Georgia.
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EXHIBIT P.

Georgia, Fulton County.
The State of Georgia '

' V8. } Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank.

Personally appeared before the undersigned a Notary Public in and for
said county, Sampson Kay, who on oath says that he is a resident of the city
of Atlanta, living at No. 264 South Pryor Street. Deponent further says
that on Saturday evening, August 23rd, 1913, about 8 or 8:30 o’clock p. m.
he saw the jury in the above entitled case walking along South Pryor Street
~ with a deputy sheriff in front and another walking in the rear of said jury,
said jury turning into South Pryor Street from East Fair Street, and thence
up South Pryor Street to the Kimball House. Deponent followed the jury
some 15 or 20 feet in the rear thereof, from E. Fair Street up South Pryor
Street to near the corner of E. Mitchell and S. Pryor, when he passed ahead
and waited on the corner of said streets until the Jury had passed, and then
continued to follow them up to the Kimball House. This deponent says that
there were some six or seven men walking alongside the Jurymen talking to
them all the way from the corner of E. Fair and S. Pryor Streets, up to the
Union Station just north of the corner of East Alabama and S. Pryor Street,
when the men left them, and the jury went on and entered the Kimball
House through the Wall Street entrance.

SAMPSON KAY.

Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 3d day of September, 1913.
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia.

. EXHIBIT Q.

/‘—‘.
- State of Georgia, Fulton County.
The State of Georgia
-~ Vs, } Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank. ‘

Personally appeared Samuel A. Boorstin, who, being duly sworn, on oath
says: That on Friday evening, on the 22d day of August, 1913, at about 5 or
9:30 p. m., he was present at the court-room of Fulton Superior Court, Judge
L. 8. Roan, presiding, during the trial of the State versus Leo M. Frank; and,
after adjournment, and when the jury had been taken from the court-room,
and shortly thereafter, the Solicitor-General, Hugh M. Dorsey, had passed
out of the court-room, there was a large crowd waiting outside, throyg—bévhich
the jury passed, comprising, perhaps, no less than two or three thousan eo-
ple; that this crowd did tumultuously and noisily applaud and cheer
Solicitor-General, and did congregate around the court-room on the outside,
standing in great numbers, both on the street and on the sidewalks; that
deponent, upon adjournment of court, was walking up Pryor Street from
said court-room in a northerly direction, and when he reached Pryor and

Alabama Streets, he saw two persons peering out of the third floor eorner —

window in the Kimball House, looking in a southward direction at the large
crowd congregated between the Kiser building and the court-house; that,
as deponent continued walking northward and reached the restaurant in the
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Union car shed, corner Pryor and Wall Streets, he still observed one of the
figures in the jury-room peering southward, with both hands upon the window
sill, whom he recognized as being Juror Smith, one of the jurors in the case
of the State versus Leo M. Frank, then being on trial. The other person,
who had his head through the window peering southward, had by this time
stuck his head back into the room, and deponent could not tell who he was.

- SAML.-A-BOORSTIN.
Sworn to and subscribed before me

this 3d day of October, 1913.

J. H. LEAVITT,

Notary .Publie, Fulton County, Georgia.

EXHIBIT R.

Georgia, Fulton County:
State of Georgia, }

Vs Superior Court of Fulton County
Liéo Frank. Charged with Murder.

Personally appeared before the undersigned officer, W. B. Cate, who
being duly sworn deposes and says; That on September the 1st, 1913, in the
afternoon, I was standing at the corner of Alabama Street and S. Pryor Street,
and had intended to go down S. Pryor Street to the Court House where the
Frank trial was being conducted but was unable to get any closer to the _
Court House on account of the crowd that had gathered in the street, I was -

__in about one block of the Court House. While I was standing at this place
I heard a great deal of cheering and shouting, the street being Full of men
most of whom were making noise and cheering. I saw some one come out
of the court house, whom I understood was Hugh Dorsey the Solicitor, and
he was picked up by some of the crowd and carried across the street on the
shoulders of the men who had him. I could not see the man that was carried
on the shoulders of the men very well but was told that it was Dorsey. There
was at this time fully three thousand men gathered around the Court House,
filling the streets on all sides of the court house. I only know Col. Dorsey
by sight.

: W. B. CATE.
Sworn and subsecribed to before me
me this Sept. 16, 1913,
VIRLYN B. MOORE,
Notary Publie, Fulton County, Ga.

EXHIBIT S.

Georgia, Fulton County.
State of Georgia .

vs. } In Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank. _

Personally apeared J. H. (. Cochran, who being duly sworn deposes and
says that he is a resident of Atlanta, Georgia, remembers the close of the
trial of Leo M. Frank, and was present in front of the Court House in Atlanta,
Georgia, on the day that the case closed and on the day that the jury returned
the verdict of guilty in said case.

5 - ot .
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~ On the day aforesaid, to-wit:—that the jury returned the verdict, Mr.
Cochran was standing in front of the Court House at the time the jury came
out of the Court House to go to dinner; at just about the same time or near

———that time, and while the jury were in the vicinity of the Court House, So-
licitor-General Hugh M. Dorsey came out of the Court House and went across
the street to the Kiser building.

Deponent says that at the appearance of Solicitor Dorsey on the
street coming from the Court Ilouse the crowd in the street, numbering
between five hundred (500) and one thousand (1,000) people, to the best of
this deponent’s estimate, broke into loud and tumultuous cheering of the
Solicitor, the jury being at the time near the Court House and proceeding
up Pryor Street and being within sight of this Deponént at the time {he cheer-
ing commenced, and that said checring lasted the whole time that the Solicitor-
General was crossing the street and until he had entered the Kiser building.

This Deponent knows that this cheering which took place in the presence
of the jury, or in their hearing, and while they were 6n Pryor Street a short
distance from the Court House, was cheering for the Solicitor, and he re-
remembers the Solicitor’s stopping at the entrance of the Kiser Building and
taking off his hat and howing to the erowds who were cheering; not only
were the crowds cheering him but people in the windows of the Kiser Build-
ing were also cheering and waving their hands and handkerchiefs at the
Solicitor; all of which was practically in the presence of the jury, at least
within their hearing, before they proceeded up Pryor Street. TFurther de-
posing he says that on said day the jury took dinner at the German (Cafe, on
South Pryor Street, a distance of approximately one hundred fifty (150) to
two hundred (200) feet from the Kiser Building, and that both outside of the
Cafe and in the Cafe, the cheering of the Solicitor-General could be heard

by any person,
s : - J. H. G. COCHRAN,
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this September 15th, 1913.
J. H. PORTER,
Notary Publie, County of Fulton, State of Georgia

EXHIBIT T.

. Georgia, Fulton County.
State of Georgia
Vvs. } In Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank, '

Personally appeared H. G. Williams, resident of Atlanta, Georgia, who
deposes and says that on the day the Frank trial closed, and verdict of
guilty was found by the jury against Leo M. Frank, accused of the murder of
Mary Phagan, this Deponent was on South Pryor Street in front of the Court
House.

This Deponent saw Solicitor Dorsey come from the Court House and
cross the street to the Kiser Building in the presence of exceeding five hundred
(500) people, who cheered his appearance at the entrance of the Court Hous;:\
with loud and continued cheering, which cheering continued until he had\
entered the Kiser Building across the street, and which cheering was ac-
knowledged by Solicitor Dorsey at the entrance of the Kiser Building where
he turned and raised his hat to the people who were cheering him.
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Just preceding Solicitor Dorsey, the jury had come out of the Court
House and had gone a short way up the street to the German Cafe for lunch;
at the time of this cheering, which could be heard for a great distance on
all sides of the Courf House, the jury were in easy hearing distance of the
noise during the whole time when the crowd was cheering Solicitor Dorsey.

Said demonstration over the Solicitor-General occupied not less than
three (3) minutes, and perhaps not exceeding five (5) minutes, and took place
on the last day of the trial, immediately after the jury had come from the
Court House on their awy to dinner. Further deposing, this Deponent says
that practically the same demonstration took place on Saturday preceding the
time herinbefore specified, at the time when Solicitor Dorsey came from the
Court House to go to his office and when the jury were proceeding from the
Court House; said demonstration on Saturday being in the presence of the
Solicitor and in the hearing of the jury, and being a demonstration over the
Solicitor General. : 2y

H. G. WILLIAMS,

DA T TR e,

Sworn to and subseribed before me
this September 15th, 1913.
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,
Notary Public, Fulton County, State of Georgia.

EXHIBIT U.

Georgia, Fulton County.

State of Georgia,
VS, Fulton. Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank. ;

: Personally appeared before the undersigned a Notary Public in and fer
said county, E. G. Pursley, who on oath says that he is a resident of the City

of Atlanta, residing at No. 50 Ponders Ave., with office at No. 700-Temple
Court.

- Deponent says that on Friday noon, before the above stated case went
to the jury on Monday, he was present in the court room where the trial
of Leo M. Frank was being held; that when court adjourned and the jury
had left and gone to lunch he came out of the court house and there was
loud cheering for ‘‘Dorsey,”’ which lasted for several minutes. Deponent
walked from the Court House to his office on the seventh floor of the Temple
Court Building, and when he reached his office some one-asked deponent what _
all the racket or fuss was about down the street.

b
:
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E. G. PURSLEY.
Sworn to and subseribed before me
this 13th day of September, 1913. - —
ROBT. C. PATTERSON,
Notary Public, Fulton Co., Ga.

. EXHIBIT V,
State of Georgia, A—
V8.

Leo M. Frank.

Itersonal]y appeared Marano Benbenisty, who on oath says that he was
standing outside of the court house on Friday afternoon, August 22nd, at
about 12:20, and I saw the jury come out of the court room. Soon ‘after the
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Jury came out of the court—room, Mr. Dorsey came out, and the crowd set
up cheering and yelling ‘‘Hurrah for Dorsey.’”’” At the time of the yelling
and cheering the jury was just crossing the street towards the Barbers’ Sup-
ply Company, which is next to the Kiser Building. That in the opinion of
the deponent there was about a thousand people crowding about the court
room,
MARANO BENBENISTY.

Sworn to and subscribed before me

this 29th day of August, 1913.
a C. A. STOKES,
Notary Publie, Fulton- County, a.

EXHIBIT W,

State of Georgia,

VS.
Lieo M. Frank.

Personally appeared Isaac Hazan, who on oath says that he was standing
outside of the court house on Friday afternoon, Aug. 22d, at about 12 :20,
and I saw the jury come out of the court room. Soon after the jury came
out of the court room, Mr. Dorsey came out, and the crowd set up cheering
and yelling ‘““Hurrah,”” ‘“‘Hurrah.” At the time of the yelling and cheering
‘the jury was just crossing the street towards the Barbers’ Supply Company,
which is next to the Kiser Building. That in the opinion of the deponent
there was about a thousand people crowded about the court room. _

Deponent further states that as the jury reached the other side of Pryor
Street in front of the Barbers’ Supply Company, deponent heard ten or fif-
teen men in front of the court house yelling toward the jury that unless they
brought in a verdict of guilty, that they would kill the whole damn bunch;
that in the opinion of your deponent, the jury must have heard them, be-
cause one of the jurors turned his face toward the yelling just when that
occurred.

ISAAC J. HAZAN.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 29th day of August, 1913.
C. A. STOKES,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Ga.

EXHIBIT X,

Georgia, FFulton County.

Personally appeared John H. Shipp, who on oath says that on Friday,
August 22, he was in room 301 of the Kiser Building, corner Hunter and So.
Pryor Streets;. that he saw the jury come out of the court house about six
P. M.; that a few minutes after the jury came out of the court house, Mr.
Dorsey appeared in the entrance, whereupon a great cheer arose from the
people crowding in the streets and around the court house entrance; that at
that time deponent saw the jury about fifty feet from the entrance of the
court house, the jury at that time crossing diagonally toward the German
Cafe; that in the opinion of deponent the yells and cheers could have been
heard several blocks away; that the crowd yelled ‘“Hurrah for Dorsey,’’ .and
that the words were plainly audible.
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Deponent further states that he was in room 301 of the Kiser Building,
on Saturday, August 23; that he saw the jury emerge from the court house
entrance at about one o’clock; that a few minutes after the jury came out,
Mr. Dorsey came out and immediately a great crowd around the court house
door set up a yell and cheer, saying ‘‘Hurrah for Dorsey,’’ taking off their
hats and throwing them in the air and otherwise exhibiting their enthusiasm ;
that at the time of the yelling, the jury was not in sight of deponent, but
deponent is of the opinion that they were within easy hearing of the yelling
and must have heard all that transpired.

Deponent further states that while he has been around the court house,
during the progress of the trial, he has heard numerous threats of violence
to the accused in case of an acquittal; that deponent knows that one of the
persons making threats was armed, that he exhibited his weapon at time of

making threat.
= : JOHN H. SHIPP.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 26th day of August, 1913, = : SRR —
C. A. STOKES,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Ga.

EXHIBIT Y.
The State of Georgia,
' VS,
Leo M. Frank.

Personally appeared B. S. Lipshitz, who on oath says that he was out in
front of the Court House, mingling with the erowd, at about one P. M. on
Saturady, August 23, immediately after court adjourned; that deponent saw
the jury come out and about one or two minutes thereafter, Mr. Dorsey came
out, whereupon there was great cheering and yelling by the crowd; that at
the time the yelling and cheering took place, the jury could not have been
more than one minute’s walk away from the court house, and in the opinion
of deponent, they could have heard the cheering and yelling.

Deponent further states that he was also present at the court house
on Friday evening, August 22nd, when Mr. Dorsey left the court house, and
heard the cheering and heard the crowd yelling ‘‘Hurrah.”’

B. S. LIPSHITZ.
Sworn to and subscribed before me '
this 26th day of August, 1913,
C. A. STOKES,
Notary Publie, Fulton County, Ga.

—_— B EXHIBIT Z.

Georgia, Fulton County.

_ Personally appeared Charles J. Moore, who on oath says that he is an
attorney at law, occupying room 301 on the third floor of the Kiser Building,
at the corner of Hunter and So. Pryor Streets; that on Friday, August 22, de-
ponent was in his office_and saw the jury come out of the court house entrance .
at about six P. M.; that soon after Mr. Dorsey appeared in the gourt house
entrance and a great cheering and yelling occurred by the crowd ymmediately
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opposite the entrance, and afterwards the crowd yelled ‘‘Hurrah for Dorsey,”’
and the volume of the yells were so great that they could have been heard
many blocks away; that they threw up their hats and gave other demonstra-
tions; that at the time of the yelling the jury was just crossing the street
toward the German Cafe, not fifty feet away from the entrance, and in the
opinion of deponent must have heard the cheering and the words ‘‘Hurrah for
Dorsey,”” because they could be plainly heard.

Deponent further states that he was in his office on Saturday, August 23,
when the jury came out of the court house at about one o’clock, and he heard
yelling and cheering when Mr. Dorsey appeared a few minutes afterwards,
Deponent did not see the jury at the time of the yelling, but it occurred so
soon after the jury came out of the court house that in the opinion of the
deponent the jury must have heard the cheering and the words that were
yelled. '

Deponent further states that since the trial has been in progress he has
heard several parties making threats of personal violence against the aceused
in the event of an acquittal; that these parties were loitering in and around
the court house entrance and making threats that if the jury did not hang
Frank; that they would pay the jury the compliment of sitting on the case
and if the jury did not do its duty, they would; that deponent recalls the
names of R. W. Milner, Richard Dutton; that Milner loitered continuously
around the court house entrance and circulated among the crowd. '

CHARLES J. MOORE.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 26th day of August, 1913.
C. A. STOKES,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Ga.

EXHIBIT AA.

Georgia, Fulton County.

Personally appeared D. Rosinky, who on oath deposes and states that on
Friday, August 22, and Saturday, August 23, he was standing near the corner
of Hunter and South Pryor Street, in the City of Atlanta, Georgia, and that
when the Solicitor-General, H. M. Dorsey, came out of the old City Hall
Building, now used as a court house, there was a loud and vociferous cheering
by the assembled crowd; that members of the crowd took the Solicitor in
their arms and carried him across the street to the Kiser Building.

D. ROSINKY.
Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 26th day of August, 1913,
LEONARD HAAS,
Notary Publie, Fulton County, Ga.




EXHIBIT BB.

Georgia, Dougherty County.
State of Georgia,

V8. In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Frank.

— Before me personally appears Mack Farkas, who being duly sworn de-
poses and says that attached to this affidavit is a carbon copy of an order
made by Sam Farkas, of Albany, Georgia, to Franklin Buggy Company, In-
corporated, of Barnesvﬂle Georgia.

Said order is marked Exhibit ““A.” Said order was taken by A. H.
Henslee, a traveling salesman for said Franklin Buggy Company, in person;
said order was taken.on the date same bears date, to-wit: on July 8th, 1913.

This affidavit is made to be used on the motion for new trial in the above
case. The name A, H. Henslee, on said order, is the handwriting and carbon
copy of the signature of A. H. Henslee.

: MACK FARKAS.

Sworn to and subscribed before me

this October 21st, A. D., 1913.
L. L. FORD,
Notary Public, Dougherty County, Georgia.

EXHIBIT BB—(Continued)
Georgia, Dougherty County. e -
State of Georgia,
V8. %In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Frank. _

Before me personally appears B. W, Simon, who being duly sworn de-
poses and says that attached to this affidavit is a carbon copy of an order
made by Sam Farkas, of Albany, Georgia, to Franklin Buggy Company, In-
corporated, of Barnesville, Georgia.

Said order is marked Exhibit ‘“A.”’ Said order was taken by A. H.
Henslee, a traveling salesmnan for said Franklin Buggy Company, in person;
said order was taken on the date same bears date, to-wit: on July 8th, 1913.

This affidavit is made to be used on the motion for new trial in the akove
case. The name A. H. Henslee, on said order, is the handwriting and carbon
copy of the signature of A. H. Henslee. .

B. W. SIMON.

Sworn to and subscribed before me
this October 21st, A. D., 1913. —
L. L. FORD, -
Notary Public, Dougherty County, Georgia.




EXHIBIT BB—(Continued)

Georgia, Dougherty County.
State of Georgia,

v8. } In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Frank.

Before me personally appears Mack Farkas, who being duly sworn de-
poses and says that attached to this affidavit is a carbon copy of an order
made by Sam Farkas, of Albany, Georgia, to Franklin Buggy Company, In-
corporated, of Barnesville, Georgia.

Said order is marked Exhibit ‘“A.’”” Said order was taken by A. H.
Henslee, a traveling salesman for said Franklin Buggy Company, in person;
said order was taken on the date same bears date, to-wit: on July 8th, 1913.

This affidavit is made to be used on the motion for new trial in the above
case. The name A. H. Henslee, on said order, is the handwriting and carbon
copy of the signature of A. H. Henslee.

SAM FARKAS.

Sworn to and subscribed before me
this October 21st, A. D, 1913.
L. L. FORD,

Notary Public, Dougherty County, Georgia.




EXHIBIT BB— (Continued)

FRANKLIN BUGGY COMPANY, INC.
. Manufacturers of the
““Improved Barnesville Buggy’’
Barnesville, ' Georgia
| July 8, 1913,
- When Ship—At Once Ship to—Sam Farkas
How Ship : ‘ Albany, Ga.
BODY GEAR Axle WHEELS
‘Cat. Drop
Quantity No. Width Style épﬂng Color Arch Tread Height Top Trimmings Stripe Price Each
4 20 R . Side Bla Arch 34 38/42 R R R 62.50 Net
et Rubbers for Job 44-V-7 15.00 }
44 22 . R Side Car Arch 34 38/42 R R R 62.50
44 22 R Side ‘Car Arch 34 38/42 R R R 62.50
et Rubbers for Job 44-V-7 | ‘ 15.00 }Net
44 23 R Side Bla Arch 34 38/42 R R R 62.50

) .TERMS‘ Oct. 1st, 2.50 per cent, discount if paid in 30 days from date of invoice; if not discounted in 30 da%s buyer agrees
to glve%note to cover the account net 90 days, from date of invoice, note to be made payable to any banker in Georgia. All goods

g

F. O. B. Barnesville, Ga. No freight allowance. All notes due after 90 days from invoice to bear interest at 8 per cent. per annum.

11 orders subject to manufacturers’ contingencies. This order not subject to countermand after 5 days. No agreement
considered unless same be written in face of this order. , .

he title of goods delivered under this contract to remain in the|name of the sellers until they shall have received money
for same, and upon failure to make such payments the sellers shall repossess themselves and take away such ggods. Should time
be taken under the terms of settlement of this contract by buyer and he should become insolvent or in default, sellers shall have
the right to declare the whole amount, including all paper given, to be due and collectible. The acceptance of the goods implies
the acceptance of this condition. All drders entered as regular 5 ft. Track unless other Track is specified. All prices F. 0. B.
Barnesville, Ga. !

Salesman—A. H. HENSLEE. - Signature—SAM FARKAS,
Pr B W Simon, B. K.




— . —EXHIBIT 0OC.

Georgia, Walton County. "
State of Georgia. .
V8. - } In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Frank.

Before me, an officer authorized under the laws of Georgia to administer
oaths, personally appear 4. J. Nunnally and W. L. Ricker, of Monroe, Georgia,
who, being duly sworn, depose and say on oath as follows: :

That they have seen in the public prints that A. H. Henslee, one of the
jurors in the Frank case, admits having made certain statements as to Frank’s

- guilt of the murder of Mary Phagan, but says these statements were made
after the trial of Leo M. Frank, and not before.

These deponents say that, so far as they know, the said Henslee has not

‘been in Monroe, Georgia, since the trial of Leo M. Frank, and they reiterate
the statement that all the statements made in their hearing by said Henslee,
-and testified about by these deponents on September 27th, 1913, were made
before the commencement of the trial of Leo M. Frank for the murder of Mary
Phagan on July 28th, 1913; to the best of these deponents’ recollection, these
statements were made in June, 1913, although as to the exact month these

deponents say not.
J.J. NUNNALLY,
W. L. RICKER.

LN

- Sworn to and subscribed before me
this October 10, A. D. 1913, -
J. B.. SHELNUTT, Clerk. _
Superior Court, Walton County, Georgia.

~—  'EXHIBIT DD.

Georgia, Fulton County.
State of Georgia. ‘

Vs. In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Frank.

Before me personally appears Julian A. Lehman, who, being duly sworn,
deposes and says on oath that he makes this affidavit for use in motion for new
trial in above stated case. °

Further deposing, he says on oath that he reiterates his statement here-
tofore made under oath that between the time of the murder of Mary Phagan,
as reported by the newspapers, and the commencement of the trial of Leo M.
Frank on July 28th, 1913, he, on two occasions, heard A. H. Henslee, a juror
in said case, express himself firmly and positively as to the guilt of Leo M.
Frank of the murder’ of Mary Phagan, in the language set forth in the affi-
davit heretofore made by this deponent and attached to the original motion
for new trial in said case; one of said times was on or about June 20th, 1913,
another time was early in the month of June, to the best of this deponent’s
recollection near June 2nd, but as to the exact date this deponent can not
state.

e JULIAN A. LEHMAN.
.Sworn te and subscribed before me . : ‘ '
-~ this 13th day of Qctober, A, D. 1913, e

J. H. PORTER,

Notary Public, Fulton County, Ga.
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EXHIBIT GG.

Georgia, Hancock County.

State of Georgia,
e — vs' ’
Leo. M. Frank.
Before me, an officer authorized under the laws of Georgia to administer
——oaths,—personally appears each of the undersigned persons, personally known
to me; who, being duly sworn, depose and say on oathg
That they are personally acquainted with Jno. M. Holmes, Shi Gray and
S. M. Johnson; and that said Holmes, Gray and Johnson are each men of the
— highest personal and moral character and reputation, and that they are each
entirely trustworthy, and worthy of belief, as to any statement made by
them, or each of them. ‘

}In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Ga.

- - .
b S

T. B. HIGHTOWER,
Sheriff Han, Co., Ga.
~W. H. BURWELL.
= HENRY H. LITTLE,
Ordinary.
FRANK L. LITTLE,
Chairman Bd. of Educa-
_tion, Sparta. coones e S O
T. M. HUNT. &
H. D. CHAPMAN, '
Tax Collector Han. Co.
THOS. F. FLEMING.
H. L. MIDDLEBROOKS,
Cashier First Nat. Bk.
G. W. RIVES,
Mayor of Sparta.
R. E. WHEELER,
Cashier Sparta Savings
Bank.
D. E. WILEY,
Clerk Superior @rt.
A. H. BIRDSONG,
Treasurer Hancock Co.
E. A. ROZIER,
V-Pres. Bank of Sparta.
J. D. BURNETT,
3 Csr. Bk. of Sparta.
Sworn to and subseribed before me - :
this October 8th, 1913.
J. D. LEWIS,
Notary Public Hancock County, Georgia.

L e TR RS TR LTTRALER © A e
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" Georgia, Fulton County.

— State of Georgia,

EXHIBIT HE.

State of Georgia,
VS. In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Ga.
Leo. M. Frank,

Before me, an officer authorized under the laws of Georgia to administer
oaths, personally appears each of the undersigned persons, personally known

- to me, who, being duly sworn, depose and say on oath:

___That they are personally acquainted with Julian A. Lehman; and that
said Lehman is a man of the highest personal and moral character and repu-
tation, and that he is entirely trustworthy, and worthy of belief, as to any

statement made by him. W. F. UPSHAW.
S. E. PRUMAN.
Sworn to and subscribed before me HENRY B. KENNEDY.
this October 16th, A. D. 1913. : —
C. W. BURKE,

Notary Public Fulton County, Georgia.

: EXHIBIT HH—Continued.
Georgia, Muscogee County.

Vs, - }_In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Frank.

Before me, an officer authorized under the laws of Georgia to administer
oaths, personally appears each of the undersigned persons, personally known
to me, who, being duly sworn, depose and say on oath: =

That they are personally acquainted with Julian A. Lehman; and that
said Lehman is a man of the highest personal and moral character and repu-
tation, and that he is entirely trustworthy, and worthy of belief, as to any
statement made by him. C. W. MIZELL.

R. P. SPENCER, JR.

Sworn to and subseribed before me
this October 15th, A. D. 1913.
J. B. STEPHENS,
Notary Public Muscogee County, Georgia.

- EXHIBIT II.

~_ State of Georgia,

Georgia, Fulton County. —

V8. }In Fulton Superior Court.
Leo. M. Frank.,

Personally appeared the undersigned deponents who, being duly sworn,
depose and say that they are personally acquainted with C. P. Stough, of.
Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia, and that they know him to be a man of
high personal character, entirely trustworthy, and absolutely worthy of
belief,as to any statement made by him, whether on oath or otherwise.

G O A. L. GUTHMAN.

Sworn to and subseribed before me ; L. P. STEPHENS.

.this 22d day of October, 1913. A H. VANDYKE.
C. W. BURKE, ' '

Notary Public Fulton County, Georgia.
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EXHIBIT JJ.
State of Georgia, === B
County of Muscogee.

Personally appeared before me, an officer duly authorized by law to
administer oaths, the undersigned who, being sworn, deposes and says that
he was head clerk at the New Albany Hotel (Albany Hotel Company, pro-
prietors), located at Albany, in said state and county, all during the months
of June, July and August, 1913, and for several years prior to that time;
and that attached hereto, marked ‘‘Exhibit A,”’ is the register of guests at
said hotel from the 20th day of June, 1913, to the 31st day of August, 1913;
and that there was no other register of guests used at said hotel during the
period above stated. :

And deponent says further that on the third page of said register of
guests, under date of July 8th, 1913 (Contd 7/8/13), on the second line from
the top, is the signature of A. H. Henslee, address ‘“Atlanta, U. S. A,, assigned
to room 7 in said hotel; and deponent says further that he was the clerk on

_duty at said hotel at the time the said Henslee registered his said name on
said register, and was a guest at said hotel during that day; and deponent
says further that he is personally acquainted with the said Henslee.

And deponent says further that he is aware and has knowledge that this
affidavit is to be used as evidence in the hearing-of the motion for a new
trial in the case of the State of Georgia versus Lieo M. Frank, -which is now—
pending in the superior court of Fulton County, Georgia. '

' = W. M. LITTLE.
Sworn to and subseribed before me
this October 23rd, 1913.
H. K. GAMMON, J. P,
Muscogee County, Ga.

EXHIBIT KK,

State of Georgia, Fulton County.

State of Georgia,
V. .... Murder. Fulton Superior Court.

Leo. M. Frank.

- Personally appears Leo M. Frank, who on oath deposes and states that
he is the defendant above named; that he did not know nor has he ever heard,
until the end of his trial in the above stated case, that A. . Henslee and
Marcellus Johenning had any prejudice or bias against deponent nor that they
or either of them had ever said or done anything indicating that they believed
in deponent’s guilt, or had any prejudice or bias against deponent.

LEO M. FRANK.

Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 24th of October, 1913.
J. 0. KNIGHT,
Notary Public, Fulton County, Georgia.
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—— — - EXHIBIT LL.

Georgia, Fulton County.
State of Georgia, :

V8. In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo. M. Frank.

To the Honorable George L. Bell,
Judge of the Fulton Superior Court:

This application is presented to the Court by Leo M. Frank, the defend-
ant in the above stated case, and shows to the Court the following facts:

The above stated case of the State of Georgia vs. Leo M. Frank, indict-
ment for murder, has been tried, a verdict found, and this defendant sen-
tenced ; and a motion for a new trial in said case is now pending before Hon-
orable L. S. Roan, Judge of the Stone Mountain Circuit, and hearing set for
October 4, 1913.

It is shown to this Court that there is a certain party in the City of
‘Atlanta, one C. P. Stough, whose affidavit is desired by this defendant to be
used as evidence on the motion for new trial, and that said C. P. Stough
refuses to give said affidavit; and it is desired to take testimony of said
C. P. Stough under Section 5918 of the Code of 1910 of the State of Georgia.

Wherefore, the premises considered, this application is made for the
purpose of having this (ourt name a Commissioner to take said testimony
and for the purpose of having subpoenas issued as provided in said section
of the Code, requiring said C. P. Stough to be and appear before said Com-
missioner at a date and place named, to answer certain questions to be pro-
pounded to him by Counsel for said defendant.

This September 29th, 1913. ~

R. R. ARNOLD,
L. Z. ROSSER,
Defendants’ Attorneys.
The foregoing application read and considered. It is ordered that Sig
Teitlebaum act as commissioner in said case, in accordance with Section 5918
of the Code of Georgia of 1910.

This September 29th, 1913.
' GEO. L. BELL,

Judge of Superior Court,
Atlanta Circuit.

EXHIBIT LL—(Continued).

Georgia, Fulton County.

State of Georgia,
In Fulton Superior Court.

-

V8.
Leo. M. Frank.
Written questions to be propounded to C. P. Stough, a witness for the
defendant in the motion for new trial pending in said case, set for hearing
October 4, 1913, before Judge L. S. Roan, Judge of the Stone Mountain
—Circuit.
1. Q. Do you know A. H. Henslee, who served on the jury in the above
stated case at the trial commencing July 28, 1913¢
A. Yes. ’
2. Q. How long have you known him?
A. About 6 or 7 years.
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During the time between the murder of Mary Phagan, as reported in
the newspapers, to-wit: on April 26, 1913, and the commencement
v of the trial of the above case, what statements, if any, did you
hear juror Henslee make in connection with Leo M. Frank, or as to
who murdered Mary Phagan, or as to who was guilty of this mur-
der; or as to how the trial of Leo M. Frank for this murder would
terminate.

A. About the time that Conley was reported to have made a statement,
I was coming into the city on a street car from the home of my
daughter. Henslee was also on the car. I heard him say this, in
reference to Leo M. Frank’s guilt of the murder of Mary Phagan
““I think he is guilty and I would like to be in a position where I
could help break his damned neck.’’

4, Q. How were these statements made?

A. This statement was most positive. Ile was as positive as I was,
and I was as positive as I could be in what I said in the con-
versation. '

5. Q. When and where was this?
—— A, _On a College Park street car, coming into the uty
6. Q. What is your business? o =
A. Inspector for the Mason’s Annuity.

, C. P. STOUGH.
Georgia, Fulton County.

g Personally appeareed C. P. Stough, who having been duly sworn-made

answer as above indicated and shown, to the foregoing written questions 1-6
inclusive; said answers executed, sworn to and subscribed before me this
September 29th, 1913. SIG TEITLEBAUM,

(IS _ Notary Publie Fulton County, Georgia, and Commlssmner to Take Testlmom,

- EXHIBIT .MM,

Georgia, Hancock County.
State of Georgia,

VS.
Leo M. Frank.

To the Honorable Clerk of the Superior Court of Hancock County, Ga.
—This application shows the following facts:
Heretofore, a verdict of guilty was returned in said case, judgment was
— passed by the Court, and a motion for new frial was filed in said case,
which said motion for new trial is set for hearing on October 4th, 1913,
before Judge L. S. Roan, Judge of the Stone Mountain Circuit.
It is shown that there are three parties who reside in Sparta, Hancock
County, Georgia, to-wit: John M. Holmes, Esq., Shi Gray, Esq.,, and S. M.
| Johnson, Esq., whose affidavits are desired by the movant as evidence on said
| — motion; and further that all three of said parties have refused to give said
| affidavits. . )
“Wherefore, this application is made to the Clerk, as provided by Sec-
tions 5918-19 of the Civil Code of 1910, State of Georgia, that subpoenas may .
be issued addressed to each of said parties, requiring them to be and appear
before J. W. Lewis, Esq., a notary public of said Hancock County, Georgia,
and answer under oath such written questions as are hereto annexed and
such further written questions as may be propounded upon the hearing,-in
lieu of making said affidavit. R. R. ARNOLD,
L. Z. ROSSER, -
Attorneys for Leo. M. Frank, Movant.
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EXHIBIT MM—(Continued).
Georgia, Hancock County.
State of Georgia, ,
V8. In Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo. M. Frank.
Questions to be propounded .to Shi Gray, of Sparta, Ilancock County,
Georgia.
1. Q. Have you examined clipping from the Atlanta Georgian of August
26, 1913, hereto attached, showing a picture of the jury in the
above stated case, and showmg a hkeness of Juror A. H. Henslee?

A. Yes.
2. Q. Are you personally acquainted with A. II. Henslee?
A. Yes.
3. Q. Did you or not hear A. H. Ilenslee discussing the question of

whether .or not Leo M. Frank was guilty of the murder of Mary
 Phagan, between the death of said Mary Phagan and the com-
mencement of the trial of Leo M. Frank charged with the murder
of Mary Phagan?
_ A, Yes,

4. Q. To the best of your - recolleetion what did he say in this conversation?
A. In a conversation in Walker & Ilolmes Insurance office, some one
asked Henslee whether he, Ilenslee, thought Frank was guilty of
— e the murder of Mary Phagan.  Henslee answered in the affirmative.
The answer given by Ilenslee was stated positively and firmly.
The conversation lasted for about 20 minutes to half an hour. All
. of us were talking, Ienslee and Mr., Holmes and Mr. Johnson, and
" others. The whole conversation at the time with Henslee was on
the proposition as to whether or not Leo M. Frank was guilty of the
murder of Mary Phagan. )
5. Q. Where and when did this take place, and who else was present?
A. It was before the trial of Frank, and it was in the insurance office
of Walker & Holmes.

6. Q. Did you not hear A. H. Henslee state, in Sparta, Ga., between the
time of the death of Mary Phagan and the commencement of-the
trial of Leo M. Frank for the murder of Mary Phagan, that Leo
"~ M. Frank was guilty of the murder of Mary Phagan?

A. Yes.
7. Q. Did you not hear A. H. Henslee say that l}ﬂhehwvod Leo M. Frank

was guilty of the murder of Mmy Phagan, and further that he
- -would bet one dollar or other sum, or would like to bet one dollar
or other sum, that he, the said A. H. Henslee, would be put on
the jury to try Leo M. Frank for the murder of Mary Phagan?
A. T heard him say he was summoned as a juror in the same conver-
sation already testified about.
8. Q. State in full what is your business occupation, or if more than one,
what are your business occupations?
A. I am a dealer in live stock. H. SHI GRAY.

Georgia, Hancock County.

Before me personally appeared H. Shi Gray, who being first duly sworn_
true answers to make to the above and foregoing written questions, answered
same as above set forth; said answers executed, sworn to, and subseribed
before me this September 26, 1913,

J. W. LEWIS, ,
Notary Publie, Hancock County, Georgla

149



EXHIBIT MM—(Continued).

Georgia, Hancock County.

State of Georgia, .
V8. In Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia,
Leo. M. Frank. ; _
Questions to be propounded to T. M. Johnson, of Sparta, Hancock County, —
Georgia.

1. Q. Have you examined clipping from the Atlanta Georgian of August

26, 1913, hereto attached, showing a picture of the jury in the
above-stated case, and showing a likeness of Juror A. II. Henslee? -
Yes. '

Are you personally acquainted with A. H. Henslee?
I know him by sight.

Did you or not hear A. H. Henslee discussing the question of whether
or not Leo M. Frank was guilty of the murder of Mary Phagan,
between the death of said Mary Phagan and the commencement
of the trial of Leo M. Frank charged with the murder of Mary
Phagan? '

Yes.

To the best of ydlﬁ"reeollection what did he say in this conver-

sation? i T e
A. Several parties were talking. Some said they thought Leo M. Frank '
was guilty of the murder of Mary Phagan, others said they did
not. Henslee stated his conviction that Frank was guilty of the '
murder of Mary Phagan. He did this firmly and positively.

Where and when did this take place, and who else was present?
Walker & Holmes office, about the last of June, 1913,

Did you not hear A. H. Henslee state, in Sparta, Ga., between the
time of the death of Mary Phagan and the commencement of the
trial of Leo M. Frank for the murder of Mary Phagan, that Leo
M. Frank was guilty of the murder of Mary Phagan?

A. Yes.

7. Q. Did you not hear A. H. Henslee say that he believed Leo M. Frank
was guilty of the murder of Mary Phagan, and further that he
would bet one dollar or other sum, or would like to bet one dollar
or other sum, that he, the said A. H. Henslee, would be put on
the jury to try Leo M. Frank for the murder of Mary Phagan?

A. He said he had been drawn as a.juror and might have to serve.

8. Q. State in full what is your business occupation, or if more than one,
what are your business occupations? —
A. Work for Walker & Holmes.

o PO P

o~
o b

O PO

T. M. JOHNSON.

Georgia, Hancock County.

Before me personally appeared T. M. Johnson, who being first duly sworn
true answers to make to the above and foregoing written questions, answered
same as above set forth, said answers executed, sworn to and subscribed be-
fore me this September 26, 1913. ' —

- J. W. LEWIS,
Notary Public, Hancock County, Ga.
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EXHIBIT MM—(Continued).

" Georgia, Hancock County.

State of Georgia,
VS.
Leo. M. Frank.

Questions to be propounded to John M. Holmes, of Spalta Hancock

}Iﬂ'Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.

County, Georgia.

1.

Q.

o

P> o

A.
Q.
A.

oro B

Have you examined clipping from the Atlanta Georgian of August
26, 1913, hereto attached, showing a picture of the jury in the
above-stated case, and showing a likeness of Juror A. H. Henslee?

Yes.

Are you personally acquainted with A, H. Henslee? = —
Yes.

Did you or not hear A. II. Henslee discussing the question of
whether or not Leo M. Frank was guilty of the murder of Mary
Phagan, between the death of said Mary Phagan and the com-
mencement of the trial of Lieo M. Frank charged with the murder
of Mary Phagan?

Yes.

To the best of your recollection what did he,say in this conversa-
tion? - - \.\

Several men were in my office. Mr. Henslee was asked the question

__whether or not he believed Leo M. Frank was guilty of the mur-

der of Mary Phagan. He stated that he did. He stated this posi-

tively and firmly.

Where and when did this take place, and who else was present?
Walker & Holmes insurance office—on the morning of June 27th,
1913.

Did you not hear A. H. Henslee state, in Sparta, Ga., between the
time of the death of Mary Phagan and thé commencement of the
trial of Leo M. Frank for the murder of Mary Phagan, that Leo
M. Frank was guilty of the murder of Mary Phagan?

Yes——

Did you not hear A. H. Henslee say that he believed Leo M. Frank

" was guilty of the murder of Mary Phagan, and further that he

- would bet one dollar or other sum, or would like to bet one dollar
or other sum, that he, the said A.H, Henslee, would be put on the
jury to try Leo M. Frank for the murder of Mary Phagan?

He stated that he had been summoned as a juror.

State in full what is your business occupation, or if more than one,
what are your business occupations?
Member of the firm of Walker & Holmes, real estate and insurance.
JOHN M. HOLMES.

Georgia, Hancock County.

Before me personally appeared John M. Holmes, who being first duly

sworn true answers to make to the above and foregomg written questions,
answered same as above set forth; said answers executed, sworn to, and sub-
seribed before me this September 26, 1913.

J. W. LEWIS,

'Not&ry Pubhe Hancock County, Ga.
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EXHIBIT NN.

Georgia, Fulton County.

State of Georgia,

Vs. }In Superior Court of Fulton County.,
Leo M. Frank.

To the Honorable Clerk of the Superior Court of Walton County, Ga.

This application shows the following facts:

Heretofore, a verdict of guilty was returned in said case, judgment was
passed by the Court, and a motion for new trial was filed in said case, which
said motion for new trial is set for hearing on October 4th, 1913, before
Judge L. S. Roan, Judge of the Stone Mountain Circuif.

It is shown that there are three parties who reside in Monroe, Walton
County, Georgia, to-wit: J. J. Nunnally, Esq., Virgil Harris, Esq., and W. L.
Ricker, Esq., whose affidavits are desired by the movant as evidence on said
motion and further that all three of said parties have refused to give said
affidavits.

‘Wherefore, this application is made to the clerk, as provided by Sections
5918-19 of the Civil Code of 1910, State of Georgia, that subpoenas may be
issued addressed to each of said parties, requiring them to be and appear
before Orrin Roberts or Clifford Walker, notary publics of said Walton
County, Ga., and answer under oath such written questions as are hereto an-
nexed and such further written questions as may be propounded upon the
hearing, in lieu of making said affidavit.

R. R. ARNOLD,
L. Z. ROSSER,
Attorneys for Leo M. Frank, Movant.

Georgia, Walton County.

State of Georgia,
Vs. In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Frank. ' :

Written questions to be propounded to J. J. Nunnally, Esq., W. L.
Ricker, Esq., Virgil Harris, Esq., and , residence Monroe, Walton
County, Georgia. :

1. Q. Have you examined the attached clipping from the Atlanta Geor-
' gian- of August 23, 1913, and particularly the likeness in said
clipping of A. H. Henslee? _ 5

A. Yes, I have. —
2. Q. Do you know A. H. Henslee?
A. T do.
3. Q. Do you recall whether or not A. H. Henslee was in Monroe, Geor-

__ gia, between the time of the murder of Mary Phagan, as reported
— in the papers, and the time of the commencement of the trial of
Leo M. Frank for the murder of Mary Phagan, to-wit, July 28,
19132
A. He was. —

4. Q. Did you hear A. H. Henslee make any statements in connection with
the guilt of Leo M. Frank of the murder of Mary Phagan, and if so,
what were those statements?

~A. I did. He talked for some time in the store of Nunnally & Harris,
and stated that Leo M. Frank was' guilty of the murder of Mary
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10.

Phagan. He denounced Frank bitterly and vehemently and made
this statement about Frank in my hearing: ‘“They are going to
break that Jew’s neck.”” This was stated most bitterly and posi-
tively.

Did you hear A. H. Henslee, in Monroe, Georgia, between said dates,
make any statements as to what he believed about the guilt of
~Leo M. Frank of the—murder of Mary Phagan; if so, what were
those statements? : —

Yes, he said that Frank was guilty.

Did A. H. Henslee, in Monroe, Georgia, between said dates, in your
presence, and hearing, say he thought Leo M. Frank ‘was guilty
of the murder of Mary Phagan; if so, did he state it positively and
firmly; how did he make the statement? Give his language as
well as you recollect it; if you do not recollect his language, what
was the tenor of it? e :

Yes; he was bitter.

Did you hear A. H. Henslee, in Monroe, Georgia, between said dates,
say anything about what the jury that tried Lieo M. Frank for the
murder of Mary Phagan would do if that jury did its duty; if so,
what did he say, giving his language as nearly as you can recollect
it, and if you can not recall the exact language, state the tenor
and effect of said language.

How long did A. II. Henslee discuss the guilt of Leo M. Frank in
Monroe, Georgia, between said dates, and how many times did he
repeat the statement that he thought Frank was guilty, in your
hearing? )

I was only present about 20 minutes. ‘He was talking all the time
I was there and stating that Frank was guilty of the murder of
Mary Phagan,

At the time you heard the statements above answered or referred to,
who else was present and who else heard these statements, if you _
know?

J. J. Nunnally and some others whose names I do not now recall.

State in full what is your business occupation, or occupations.

Dentist. Practicing about seven years. Am graduate of Atlanta
Dental-Colege—

W. L. RICKER.

Georgia, Walton County.
Before me personally appeared W. L. Ricker, who being first duly sworn
true answers to make to the above and foregoing questions, answered same as
above set forth; said answer executed, sworn to and subscribed before me
this September 27, 1913. i R
CLIFFORD WALKER,
Notary Public, Walton County, Ga.




EXHIBIT NN—(Continued).
Georg_i_a, Walton County.

State of Georgia,

VS, }In the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia.
Leo M. Erank. .

Written questions to be propounded to J. J. Nunnally, Esq., W. L.
Ricker, Esq., Virgil Harris, Esq., and , residence Monroe, Walton County,
Georgia.

1. Q. Have you examined the attached clipping from the Atlanta Georgian
of August 231913, and particularly the likeness in said clipping
of A. H. Henslee? '

Yes.

Do you know A. H, Henslee?
Yes.

Do you recall whether or not A. H. Henslee was in Monroe, Georgia,
between the time of the niurder of Mary Phagan, as reported in the
papers, and the time of the commencement of the trial of Leo M.
Frank for the murder of Mary Phagan: to-wit—July 28, 1913.

He was.

Did you hear A. H. Henslee make any statements in connection with
the guilt of Leo M. Frank of the murder of Mary Phagan, and if so,
what were those statements?

What impressed me was that Henslee was the most vehement in his

expressions as to the guilt of Leo M. Frank of the murder of Mary
Phagan, of any person I had heard talk about it. The Phagan mur-
der was, at the time, the particular topic of conversation generally;
a great many people were discussing it, and many men denouncing
Frank as guilty, particularly traveling men. Henslee was the
most bitter of any. For about two and one-half hours in my place
of business Henslee argued Frank’s guilt in the murder case; in talk-
ing about the outcome of the case. he made the statement, which
to the best of my recollection was, that if the jury should turn
Frank out, he (Frank) would not get out of Atlanta alive.

5. Q. Did you hear A. H. Henslee, in Monroe, Georgia, between said dates,
make any statements as to what he believed about the guilt of Leo
M. Frank of the murder of Mary Phagan; if so, what were those
statements?

A. Yes, he believed him guilty.

6. Q. Did A. H. Henslee, in Monroe, Georgia, between said dates, in your
presence, and hearing, say he thought Leo M. Frank was guilty of
the murder of Mary Phagan; if so, did he state it positively and
firmly; how did he make the statement? Give his language as well
as you recollect it; if you do not recollect his language, what was
the tenor of it? -

A. He was very vehement as stated ; there was no doubt from what he
said that it was his conviction that Frank was guilty.

7. Q. Did you hear A. H. Henslee, in Monroe, Georgia, between said dates,
~ say anything about what the Jury that tried Leo M. Frank for the
murder of Mary Phagan would do if that jury did its duty; if so,
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what did he say, giving his language as nearly as you can recollect
it, and if you can not recall the exact language, state the tenor and
effect of said language. :

I only recall that, to the best of my recolection, he said that if the
jury did turn Frank aloose, Frank would never get away alive.

How long did A. H. Henslee discuss the guilt of Leo M. Frank in
Monroe, Georgia, between said dates, and how many times did he
repeat the statement that he thought Frank was guilty, in your
hearing?

About two and one-half hours, according to my recollection. He
made the statements repeatedly ; it might have been only two hours.

At the time you heard the statements above answered or referred to,
who else was present and who else heard these statements, if you
know ? o .

Dr. W. L. Ricker, and at times during the period there were others,
but their names I don’t recall. My partner, Mr. Harris, was out
of the city.

State in full what is your business occupation, or occupations.
A member of the firm of Nunnally & Harris,-composed of J. J. Nun-
nally and Virgil Harris, dealers in buggies, wagons, and live stock.
Also vice-president W. H. Nunnally Co., general supplies and mer-
chandise. ,
J. J. NUNNALLY.
Georgia, Walton County.

Before me personally appeared J. J. Nunnally, who, being first duly sworn
true answers to make to the above and foregoing written questions, answered
same as above set forth; said answers executed, sworn to and subscribed
before me this September 27, 1913.

— CLIFFORD WALKER,
Notary Public, Walton County, Ga.

The recitals of fact contained in the original motion for new trial, and in
the one hundred and three grounds of the foregoing amended motion for new
trial (the same being all the grounds of said original and all the grounds of
said amended motion) are hereby approved as true, and the Court has identi-
fied all the exhibits and they are made part of said motion for new trial.

October 31, 1913.

L. S. ROAN,

J. S. C., St. Mt. Ct.

After considering the above and foregoing motion and amended motion
and affidavits submitted by the State the motion for a new trial is hereby over-
ruled and denied.

This October 31, 1913.

L. S. ROAN,
Judge Superior Court, Stone Mountain Circuit, Presiding.

Recorded Writs M. G. page 796,

31st October, 1913. - _
JOHN H. JONES, Deputy Clerk.




CHARGE OF THE COURT.

Vs. Fulton Superior Court.
Leo M. Frank. Trial: July 28 to Aug. 21, 1913,

Gentlemen of the Jury:

This bill of indictment charges Leo M. Frank with the offense of murder.
The charge is that Leo M. Frank, in this county, on the 26th day of April, of
this year, with force and arms, did unlawfully and with malice aforethought
kill and murder one Mary Phagan by then and there choking her, the said
Mary Phagan, with a cord placed around her neck. e .

To this charge made by the bill of indictment found by the“grand jury
of this county recently empanelled Leo M. Frank, the defendant, files a plea
of not guilty. The charee as made by the bill of indictment on the one hand
and his plea of not guilty filed thereto form the issue, and you,_gentlemen of
the jury, have been selected, chosen and sworn to try the truth of this issue.

Leo M. Frank, the defendant, commences thé trial with the presumption
of innocence in his favor, and this presumption of innocence remains with him
to shield him and protect him until the State shall overcome it and remove it
by evidence offered to you, in your hearing and presence, sufficient in its
strength and character to satisfy your minds beyond a reasonable doubt of

~ his guilt of each and every material allegation made by the bill of indictment.
I charge you, gentlemen, that all of the allegations of this indictment are
material and it is necessary for the State to satisfy you of their truth by evi-
dence that convinces your minds beyond a reasonable doubt of his guilt before
you would be authorized to find a verdict of guilty. You are not compelled
to find, from the evidence, his guilt beyond any doubt, but beyond a reasonable
doubt, such a doubt as grows out of the evidence in the case, or for want of
evidence, such a doubt as a reasonable and impartial mind would entertain
about matters of the highest importance to himself after all reasonable efforts
to ascertain the truth. This does not mean a fanciful doubt, one conjured up
by the jury, but a reasonable doubt.

Gentlemen, this defendant is charged with murder. Murder is defined to
be the unlawful killing of a human being, in the peace of the State, by a person
of sound memory and discretion, with malice aforethought, either express or
implied. :

Express malice is that deliberate intention unlawfully to take away the
life of a fellow-being, which is manifested by external cireumstances capable
of proof.

Malice shall be implied where no considerable provocation appears, and
where all of the circumstances of the killing show an abandoned and malig-
nant heart.

There is no difference between express and implied malice except in the
mode of arriving at the fact of its existence. The legal sense of the term
““malice’’ is not confined to particular animosity to the deceased, but extends
to an evil design in general. The popular idea of malice in its sense of re-
venge, hatred, ill will, has nothing to do with the subject. It is.an intent to
kill a human being in a case where the law would neither justify nor in any
degree excuse the intention, if the killing should take place as intended. It
is a deliberate intent unlawfully to take human life, whether it springs from
hatred, ill will or revenge, ambition, avarice or other like passion. A man
may form the intent to kill, do the killing instantly, and regret the deed as
soon as done. Malice must exist at the time of the killing. It need not have
existed any length of time previously.

156

State of Georgia, } Murder.

-




N,

When a homicide is proven, if it is proven to be the act of the defendant,
the law presumes malice, and unless the evidence should relieve the slayer he
may -be found guilty of murder. The presumption of innocence is removed
by proof of the killing by the defendant. When the killing is shown to be
the act of the defendant, it is then on the defendant to justify or mitigate
the homicide. The proof to do that may come from either side, either from
the evidence offered by the State to make out its case, or from the evidence
offered by the defendant or the defendant’s statement.

Gentlemen of the jury, you are made by law the sole judges of the credi-
bility of the witnesses and the weight of the testimony of each and every wit-
ness. It is for you to take this testimony as you have heard it, in connection
with the defendant’s statement, and arrive at what you believe to be the
truth.

Gentlemen, the object of all legal investigation is the discovery of truth.
That is the reason of you being selected, empanelled and sworn in this case—
to discover what is the truth on this issue formed on this bill of indictment.
Is Leo M. Frank guilty? Are you satisfied of that beyond a reasonable doubt
from the evidence in this case? Or is his plea of not guilty the truth? The
rules of evidence are framed with a view to this prominent end—seeking al-
ways for pure sources and the highest evidence.

Direct evidence is that which immediately points to the question at issue.
Indirect or circumstantial evidence is that which only tends to establish the
issue by proof of various facts sustaining, by their consistency, the hypothesis
claimed. To warrant a conviction on circumstantial evidence, the proven facts
must not only be consistent with the hypothesis of guilt, but must exclude
every other reasonable hypothesis save that of the guilt of the accused.

The defendant has introduced testimony as to his good character. On
this subject, I charge you that evidence of good character when offered by the
deferidant in a criminal case is always relevant and material, and should be
considered by the jury, along with all the other evidence introduced, as one
of the facts of the case. It should be considered by the jury, not merely where
the balance of the testimony in the case makes it doubtful whether the de-
fendant is guilty or not, but also where such evidence of good character may
of itself generate a doubt as to the defendant’s guilt. Good character.is a
substantial fact, like any other fact tending to establish the defendant’s inno-
cence, and ought to be so regarded by the jury. Like all other facts proved
in the case, it should be weighed and estimated by the jury, for it may render
that doubtful which would otherwise be clear. Ilowever, if the guilt of the
accused is plainly proved to the satisfaction of the jury beyond a reason. hle
doubt, notwithstanding the proof of good character, it is their duty to con-
vict. But the jury may consider the good character of the defendant, whether
the rest of the testimony leaves the question of his guilt doubtful or not, and
if a consideration of the proof of his good character, considered along with
the evidence, creates a reasonable doubt in the minds of the jury as to the
defendant’s guilt, then it would be the duty of the jury to give the defendant
the benefit of the doubt thus raised by his good character, and to acquit him.
(Stephens case, 81 Ga. 589). i

The word ‘‘character’’ as used in this connection, means that general
reputation which he bore among the people who knew him prior to the time of
the death of Mary Phagan. Therefore, when the witnesses by which a de-
fendant secks to prove his-good charicter are put upon the stand, and testify
that his character is good, the effect of the testimony is to say that the people
who knew him spoke well of him, apd that his general reputation was other-

wise good. When a defendant has put his character in- issue, the State is
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untruly reported it. Hence, the Solicitor-General has been allowed to cross-

examine the witnesses for the defense who were introduced to testify to his

good character. In the cross examination of these witnesses, he was allowed

to ask them if they had not heard of various acts of misconduct on the defend-
ant’s part. The Solicitor-General had the right to ask any questions along
this line he pleased, in order thoroughly to sift the witnesses, and to see if
anything derogatory to the defendant’s reputation could be proved by them,
The Court now wishes to caution you that, although the Solicitor-General was
allowed to ask the defendant’s charactep witnesses these questions as to their
having heard of various acts of alleged misconduect on the defendant’s part,
the jury is not to consider this as evidence that the defendant has been guilty
of any such misconduct as may have been indicated in the questions of the
Solicitor-General, or any of them, unless the alleged witnesses testify to it.
Furthermore, where a man’s character is put in evidence, and in the course of
the investigation any specific act of misconduct is shown, this does not 20
before the jury for the purpose of showing affirmatively that his character is
bad or that he is guilty of the offense with which he stands charged, but is to
be considered by the jury only in determining the credibility and the degree
of information possessed by those witnesses who have testified to his good
character. (Henderson’s case, 5 Ga. App. 495 (3)).

When the defendant has put his character in issue, the State is allowed
to bring witnesses to prove that his general character is bad, and thereby to
disprove the testimony of those who have stated that it is good. The jury
is allowed to take this 1 estimony, and have the right to consider it along with
all the other evidence introduced on the subject of the general character of
the defendant, and it is for the Jury finally to determine from all the evidence
whether his character was good or bad. But a defendant is not to be con-
victed of the erime with which he stands charged, even though, upon a consid-
eration of all the evidence, as to his character, the jury believes that his char-
acter is bad, unless from all the other testimony in the case they believe he is
guilty beyond a reasonable doubt.

You will, therefore, observe that this is the rule you will be guided by
in determining the effect to be given to the evidence on the subject of the de-
fendant’s character: If, after considering all the evidence pro and con, on
the subject of the defendant’s character, you believe that prior to the time
of Mary Phagan’s death he bore a good reputation among those who knew
him, that his general character was good, you will consider that as one of the
facts in the case, and it may be sufficient to create a reasonable doubt of the
defendant’s guilt, if it so impress your minds and consciences, after consider-
ing it along with all the other evidence_in-the case; and if it does you should
give the defendant the benefit of the déubt and acquit him. However, though
you should believe his general character was good, still if, after giving due
weight to it as one of the facts in the case, you believe from the evidence as
a whole that he is guilty beyond a reasonable doubt, you would be authorized -
to conviet him,

If you believe beyond a reasonable doubt from the evidence in this case
that this defendant is guilty of murder, then you would be authorized in that
~event to say ‘“We, the jury, find the defendant guilty.””  Should you go no

further, gentlemen, and say nothing else in your.verdiet, the Court would have
to sentence the defendant to the extreme penalty for murder, to-wit: to be
hanged by the neck until he is dead. But should you see fit to do so, in the
event you arrive at the conclusion and belief beyond a reasonable doubt from
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the evidence that this defendant is guilty, then, gentlemen, you would be
authorized in that event, if you saw fit to do so, to say: ““We, the jury, find
the defendant guilty, and we recommend that he be imprisoned in the peni-
tentiary for life.”” In the event you should make such a verdict as that, then
the Court, under the law, would have to sentence the defendant to the peni-
tentiary for life. _

“You have heard the defendant make his statement. He had the right
to make it under the law. It is not made under oath and lL.e is not subject to
examination or cross-examination. It is with you as-to how much of it you
will believe, or how little of it. You may go to the extent, if you see fit, of
believing it in preference to the sworn testimony in the case.

In the event, gentlemen, you have a reasonable doubt from the evidence,
or the evidence and the statement together, or either as to the defendant’s guilt
as charged, then give the prisoner the benefit of that doubt, and acquit him;

_and in the event you do acquit him the form of your verdict would be: “We,
the jury, find the defendant not guilty.”” As honest jurors do your utmost to
reach the truth from the evidence and statement as you have heard it here,
then let your verdict speak it.

Examined and approved as my charge in this case, Nov. 1, 1913.

(Signed) L. S. ROAN,
J. S. C., St. Mt. Ct.
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Accidents in Metal Room
Employees’ hands cut often
Particular instances
Floors not washed or cleaned
Hands dressed in office
Pass by dressing room

Adamsg, J. Q. :
Made photographs of Selig home, and factory (see pictures)

AIDEEY O, D o ins ivs 505 5 thon 0ie mited Bdisih 4k 08 S A S TG SRR & 168
Frank’s character good
Knew Frank two years
At Cornell
Professor of Machine Designs, Cornell

ADBerson, B N. . ivon coivssion von sain semmniers o Vol o6 ol § i SR 147
Frank’s bank book and cancelled checks identified

‘Defense Exhibits 50, 51
His bank balance stated ............covvenn. e Founees eeeeas

Anderson, W. F. .....c.ovtiiriiriiniineninanennsans s e B o i
April 26th _ o
Answers phone call to factory
3:30 a. m., tried to call Frank by phone
Got no answer
Lee, Newt
Body of deceased, carried officers to
- Blood on underclothes and body
Wound on head

ABNer, 8. L ..ttt e et e 242
Heard man on car (Kendley) say, ‘‘They ought to hang the damn Jew,”’

referring to Frank g vy 242

Atkinson, Miss Laura
Dalton, C. B, she knew slightly ............cccciiviiiiiiiiiiinss ~-18b-
..~ Never met him at Busy Bee Cafe, or walked to factory, oriome with
11 P I e e Biom Sooiile Bibusch e P N S I e 135
Hopkins, Daisy Mrs. | - '
— - Did not know




Ba,lley, Gordon (Snowball) ............................. AR e e 136
April 25th ' o o e
Did not see Frank talk|to Conley RIS Rusiih TR mistem avwie eimsecsmepvl e § 136
Character for veracity led ......................... 3 BT SRR 98 120
Conley, Jim |
= ; Has seen him reading newspapers ................ooonoemnonno.. .. 136
: Never saw him guarding AOOFR: = sy sssiwnias 5o S3iaih 505 basineme matainions 136 .
Frank, Leo M. | -
Never saw him with women inoffice ...........oiiiiiiiiinn, 136
Saturdays _ —

Frank never asked Conley to return on
Barnes, Miss Sarah .................000iiiii 171
Frank’s character good ..............ovveininorn 17
Barrett, R. P. ...t 26
Hair seen on machine ....... s RTEREAE SR TR B hreieimieree miNe WA SOe B 27
Metal department searched ST X R N VT SR . S
Pay envelope found ...............c0o'iiien T e 27
Reward hoped for and worked fOr .. ....vuenrvroreees oo, 137
Spots found .......... ... i % s mea T 26
L - P 13
o Saturdays ¢
- Worked at factory, summer 1909 and 1910 and some Saturdays since. 135
S Frank’s office . % =
At, on Saturdays ..........ieveiiii e 135
Frank, Schiff, Holloway, office boy there ............. e s ek 135
Never saw any women there ............coouvuiininnrinennnnn. .. 135
Beard, Emma (¢) ..................:..... A T e A (U S L S 121
April 26th
Telephone call for Schiff, sounded like a boy’s voice, and sald “Tell . '
Mr. Schiff that Mr. Frank wants him at the office’’. ........... v L -
Schiff sent word he would come .......... A T T 121
Schiff went back t0 SIEED ... \...versreerrn e 121

Telephone call for Schiff again by same voice, 11 o’clock a. m., same
message .
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Benedjct; 8. C.,, Pres, State Board of Health

Blaok, JORB R, . i cooamaraaass oo vioe ojoivis oo aros s e o de eate wimaie
April 28th, arrested Frank ; -
Bloody shlrt found at Newt Lee s house at 9:00 a. m., on 29th,
Coroner’s Inquest T
Frank answered questions readlly
Factory examined Sunday

——Frank,—Leo M. y

Heard phone conversation between Frank and Starnes
Safe at factory easily opened by Frank, 27th
Lee, Newt
____Bloody shirt found
Frank and witness talked to Lee at police station
Undertaker’s »
Frank and witness saw body at
Frank did not know her by name
Said he knew few employees by name but thought he had paid
this girl off Saturday

Blueprint, from which model made
Defense Exhibit 87

-Branch, Harlee

Conley, Jim

Said he had never seen mesh bag ..

Said it took him thirty-five minutes after going up-stairs before he got
out of building, April 26th

Said that he finished at 1:30 p. m. and then went out

Said that L. Quinn got to factory about 12 o’clock, April 26th, and
stayed eight or nine minutes

Story of, to detectives, heard by :

Tragedy explained by, for detectives at factory

Whether Conley could read
Conley read newspapers
Folded papers after reading

17

Brent M N i 5o w06t WISIAY £AeiR Sauie Wiaers akde (a6 QOISR GONS SHaTS GRS WHE STISAE W in 241

. Kendley, George, bitter toward Frank
Took part of Conley in factory experiments after tragedy

Butler, R. P
‘Metal Room
Doors, wooden, with wmdows

~ Can see in, with doors closed
Glass in, 15x18 inches '
Six feet wide
Floors very.. d1r1_;y
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TOampbell, Wade . ......o..vniinetti e e e e 105
April 26th
230 8.0, Leuched FABtOXY .oux wos wows visw ssvwsmeEs semEeE Ve fe 105
_ Frank worlang 8t B8 v vo apvivnes vos s sesiina de aws g 105
== 9:40 a. m., left factory, had not seen Conley at all ................. 105
Conley, Jim ° ' o
Not at factory, 26th, when Campbell there ............covvvvvunnn. 105
Reading, Campbell has seen Conley ...........co0viiirnneinnnnnns 106
Writing, Campbell has seen Conley .........coovveveivereeennnnns 106
Frank never talked with deceased ..............covvvvniivneennnnnn. 105
Spots all over metal room .............. N T — 105
White, Mrs. J. A., told Campbell about seeing unknown negro sitting by
stairs April 26th GRORE LB T M cocorm uontsesons suscariicangne v sveypne psa woils 105
~ Witness subpoenaed to Dorsey’s office .........vouvverrerrennennennns 106
Carson, IMiss Irene ...........¢ovviiinniininerenneennneenns eeteeenes 174
Frank’s character good ...........ooeeeurnmeeneennnnnnnns s & Brece winia 8 174
Knew him 15 months .  geiaserese wiRe SR B9 e GRS BTN & 174
_ Never met Frank for immoral purpose . .......ocvvivviinneneennnnens 174
Carson, Miss Rebecea ............ovivirunrernnnnnnennns, x sarels enmwsibe g ALT
* ~  April 25th | '
Paid off 5:30 P. M. .. ovviiiiiiiiii i i i it e 117 -
April 26th
2:20 to 2:25 p. m., saw Frank at Rich’sstore ..........0cvvvuvunn.. 117
Frank spoke to her there ............ccvviiiiinrerennnnennnss 117 .-
-2:50 p. m., saw Frank enter Jacobs’ Pharmacy..................... 117
Whltehall and Alabama St. store ........coiiiiiiiiiirineanaa. 117
Time fixed how ............cccviinn... SR SRR R S 117
April 28th ‘ &
Conley, Jim, conversation With ...........covveneernnneenns el 117
‘““Where were you Saturday, were you in factory?’’ .............. 117
““I was so drunk I don’t know where I was nor what I did”’....... 117
Conley not suspected at this fime .............covvvnvnnnnnn. 117
“‘Mr. Frank is just as innocent as an angel”..............cco0uu.. 117
Conley not suspected then ................. S e Elinl asnan oy 117
““The murderer will be the negro Mrs. White saw sitting on the box
at the foot of thestairs’ ...« ..o, 117
- Effect of this statement ...............ccovuvuuunn.. o Ve 117
Told her mother -about Conley’s statements ....................... 117
ADd.Al8o; Ni Vo DOBleY--wian sa summaasson somtisits wis s it i oo 117
Fourth floor, works on, at factory ........................ PSP b L
Forelady of sorting department .................... e eneeans 117
Has 13 to 15 girlsunder her...........oviinniiinnnnnnenennnnnns 117
Never went into dressing room with Frank ......... g 222
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Carson, Mrs. EE M. ........ s vEvEmeEY o w8 KEAWDOS Be sathce s mammde e 118
— April 29th |

9:00 to 10:00 a. m., Frank en fourth floor .............. o s v o 118

Frank did not whisper to Conley ..........covvivivneevnnnnn. 5.5 NIB
Did not ask employees to stick to him ...... R e I SR B § 118
Said the tragedy was-deplorable ............c.covviivennnnnnn L. 118
Blood spots . A
Common in and near dressing room .......... SR R SRR e heVATES 118
From finger cuts ............... Y S ... 118
From menstruation . ...........coieveeeeinunnnnnens o VTS B T 119
Never saw Frank drinking in office ....................... faiocein wom -..__1.119
Castro, L. M. ................... © sn B i B SRS, | <
Distances to factory from '
Hunter and Broad Sts., 1 1-2 minutes .............ccciiiivnnennnn. 154
Marietta and Forsyth Sts., 4 1-2minutes ..............covvvvenn.n. 154
~ Whitehall and Hunter Sts., 3 1-3 minutes ...........vvree... I 154
Walking at moderate gait ................ iR S WS VeTeaae 154
OB N DEYTRION . oo i o sto Ao 4030 o/50s Buseiioicnss S0 il 35 il ik 223
Says she saw Miss Rebecca Carson go into dressing room with Frank,. 223
Other ladies on floor at time ............. e, 223
Thelr NAMos: BOt GIVEN. oo vuav oo siar o wisis deies ¢nie ferarecsaaaes 223
Chambers, Philip ..............ccc0vnvvenn., oF W SV S BEE SE HOR 132
Conley, Jim | )
Sometimes swept SAtUTARYE .o cov o v nie aies vaws so s wiws e 132 .
~ Witness never saw him watechdoor ............ccovvviiininninnnnnn. 132 --
Dalton, C. B. '
Never saw him at factory ............... S ¥ R Eats T e e o 132
Darley,N. V.
Gave orders to all sweepers not to sweep after noon ...... AT 132
Frank, Leo M. :
Never saw him familiar with women ........... wMeae e wiwva e s T 132
Never saw him speak to deceased ..................ccovnen.. vees 132
Office boy at factory December, 1912, to March, 1913........ e eeees 132
Saturdays at factory , .
1430 £0:2:00 p. Di. 80 QINGY oi vovaiwion ssis s wams s sesTIos Vosoes i 192
4:30 p. m. at factory, until ..................... S SR 132
Never saw Conley or any one watch door ............ e 132
Schiﬂ?helpedFrankon.....................; ....... T — 132

‘Wife of Franksometimes with him on ...« rvrierererere 132
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Character of Leo M. Frank good = l
Misses Annie Osborne, Rebecca Carson, Maude Wright, Corinthia Hall,
Annie Howell, Lillie M. Goodman, Velma Hayes, Jennie Mayfield, Ida.
Holmes, Willie- Hatchett,- Minnie Smith, Marjorie McCord, Georgia
Denham, Zilla Spivey, Minnie Foster, Mary Pirk, Julia Fuss, Mesdames
Ella Thomas, O. Jones, M. W. Carson, Dora Small .................... 220
coee 220

Misses Mollie Blair, Ethel Stewart, Cora 66wan Lizzie Word, Bessie

- White, Grace Atherton, Mrs. Barnes, B. D Smith .. .. .............. 220
. All worked on fonurth. HO0P . . icu vun s caie s siesd wa Ve 5 K GE o 220
Never heard of any wrongdoing of Frank ........................ 220
Never met Frank for immoral purposes ................ e 220
Charles Lee, N. V. Darley, F. Ziganki, A. C. Holloway, R. P. Butler,
 Joe Stelker .. .....iiiiiiiiiii..... @ Wi v werss s acie T 220, 221
All omployed SETACLOIY: « covv v o e s wes TaE DY 05 SEES 220, 221

D. I. Maclntyre, B. Wildauer, Mrs. Dan Klein, Alex. Dittler, Dr. J. E.
Sommerfield, F'. G. Schiff, Al Guthman, Joseph Gershon, P. D. McCarley,
Mrs. M. W. Meyer, Mrs._David Marx, Mrs. A. L. Harris, M. S. Rice, #
L. H. Moss, Mrs. L. H. Moss, Mrs. Joseph Brown, E. E. Fitzpatrick,
Emil Dittler, Wm, Bauer, Miss Helen Loeb, Al Fox, Mrs. Martin May,
Julia V. Boehm, Mrs. Mollie Rosenbaum, M. H. Silverman, Mrs. L.
Sterne, Chas.” Adler, Mrs. R. A. Sonn, Miss Ray Klein, A. J. Jones, -
L. Einstein, C. J. Bernard, J. Fox, Marcus Loeb, Fred Hellbra,y, Milton
Klein, Nathan Coplan, Mrs. J. E. Sommerfield ..... o e BN VS AT e 220
- ; All residents of Atlanta ..............coiuniinnininnnnnnnn, 220

By Gl 4 5% TSR » 220

Alfred L. Lane, Brooklyn; Philip Nash, Ridgewood, N. J.; Richard A.
Wright, New York; Ilarry Lewis, Brooklyn ; Herbert Lasher, New York;
John W. Todd, Pittsburg; Professors C. D. Albert andJ. E. Vanderhoef
Cornell University ........oiiiiiiiie ittt 167, 168
All knew Frank at Cornell University, or Pratt Institute, or both. 167 168

V. H. Kriegshaber, M. F. Goldstein, Dr. David Marx, R. A. Sonn, Arthur
Heyman, Mrs. H. Glogowski, Mrs. Adolph Montag, Mrs. J. O. Par-

. | EGAER 5 & & 5ot 5008 515 HOH § A 56T 65 555 55 Yoherw v mimmen peesemnts oSS -169,170—

Misses Ida- Hays, Eula May Flowers, Opie Dickerson, Sarah Barnes,

Irene Jackson, Bessie Fleming, Irene Carson; Mesdames Emma Clark

Freeman, Mattie Thompson, J. J. Wardlaw ........... T b e b 170-174
All'employed 8t TaRLOTY v« i oo s smies 56t SRS 555 som croinmae 170-174

A. D. Greenfield, John Finley, John A. Jones,.Isaac Haas ...... 142,147, 164

‘Special examination by New York Life Insurance Company in 1912,
.andresults .. ............. 578 DA mmliosiu wiesern WeURTE RS R W S e 164
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Character of Leo M. Frank—Continued
Witnesses attacking Frank’s character

5 Misses Myrtice Cato, Maggie Griffin, Marie Carst, Nellie Pettis, Mary
Davis, Estelle Winkle, Carrie Smith; Mesdames C.,D. Donegan, H. R.
Johnson, Mary E. Wallace .......cccociinveniinnrrcsoccsnnsrsnns 221
All former employees at factory ........... =l ori o sl swess ot Bad 221
Clarke Woodenware Company
On first floor of factory; door to, not locked ; nailed up, but found broken
open just after the tragedy.....: O RO S LA DR SR £ T AR 7, 79 B
State Exhibit A (243) does DOt ShOW ..o uwieios sios e arsies saa s aieis wos ors 97
Coleman, J. W., conversation with McWorth ...... T 233
Coleman, Mrs, J.W. ..ottt ninees S §iE D 1
— April 26th ————————
= 11:45 a. m., last saw deceased in life...................... sreaes 1
' Had eaten cabbage and bread at 11:30 a. m.
Deceased carried silver mesh bag ............covviiiviinns e &
B oConley, JIM ... o e G50 SR 59
' - T Character Dad ... ii. i i 120,121,220
Criminal 1oPd OF «..vuvvrerenerernenenerernennenenesnennnen....63,18¢ 7
Biata's BxRIBIE T - oo vecsass e o s sus 5w ses SN S e e : 261 '
Coplan, Nathan _ /
' Thanksgiving, 1912
& 8:00 to 10:00 p. m., Frank at dance ..... SRR RORE et 137
D‘
DAlBON, To B, o soi eniviocsian v 555 $8007 Gaiw 06 o SRR RS Thd & BNV 50 .
Basement of factory ' _
Has been in, with women .........coo0vevvesnee A 50
Could not say that Frank knew this...........oouviiiinniinn.. 50
Conley, Jim, known to Dalton ..................... o5 S dEe i T 50
Character of, bad ] _
Impeached by certain witnesses .........c.covveiiviiininenneanann. 135
Buatained DY OTHOIB ...« eins commmion st 56658.560 £070 50T RIS 5.6 S8 S99 221 T
= Frank’s Office -
WOMEN TN o eveeerteeteneensennenneaneaneansens S, P 50 : ==
F ~ Hopkins, Mrs. Daisy 2 ' .
MRG0T 88 10! 550505505 s Eiassis S Ha's 8@ EELTeN G5 65 Ko &9 50
Darley. M. Y. oo ovis voiovais iiots o Giaiwe s S—— S S B S 32
April 26th : . -
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Darley, N. V.—Continued
Clarke Woodenware Company
Door to, found broken opexuust after the tragedy
Conley, Jim
April 26th
Darley did not see, at factory
April 28th )
Excited and nervous; looked most suspicious to Darley
Excitement in factory after tragedy
" Financial sheet
Seen by him on Frank’s desk
Usually completed after 5:30 p. m. on Saturdays
Frank, Leo M.
' Aprll 27th, no seratches on
Nervous many times and for various causes at factory
Witness says Frank never spoke to deceased
Gantt, J. M.
At factory 3 or 4 times after discharge-
Hired all the help
Hopkins, Mrs. Daisy
Never knew her
Night watchman
White, until Newt Lee hired
Paint all over factory
Saturdays
Darley accustomed to leave at 12:00 ‘m., and return 5:00 to 6:00 p.m. 76
Frank worked on . 76
Usually Denham there to clean motor .. .. N CEEEEEE TP REPRR PP PR 77
Spots all over factory .......ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinins. A BB Wi 33, 35

Denham, Harry ..
April 25th
Paid off
April 26th, returned to factory to work on machinery
7:30 a. m., reached factory

11:15 a. m., went down to have Holloway do some work

12:00 to 3:00 p. m., at work on machinery

12:30 p. m., Mrs. White came to see Arthur White

12:50 p. m, Frank came up, first time............................ .. 109
3:00 p. m., Frank came to 4th floor and asked Denham and White
how they were getting on




Denham, Harry—Continued

=t : They were washing at the time .......... e wRazs ~308— - -
3:10 p. m.,, White and Denham left.......... = Y 108 - o
They saw Frank in office at Work........cvevuvinvnennrnnrnnennns 108
White borrowed $2.00 from Frank:...............00uueeesnnn... 108
. Whole building open to Denham and White. . L BT B R 108
) ~ Elevator T _
Did not hear, all day, 26th........... Bhte ErmCRERIAAIS orH ATHS YOO KN 108
No noises but street noises. .....oovviiirrieiiiiieeiinrennnnnnss 108
Wheels of, can be seen from where they worked, about forty feet
away .. ...... TR EE NS NG B R B 109 .
Crocus sacks on floor, where working..... S 68 59 Bammeee TUD Sk
Dickerson, Miss Opie ................ % s T S8 B e Bs WP - 171
Conley’s character bad ......... G0 KBS B iiiire sl o fanecmneSorns aiazeizasermiscens 171
/7 Has known him 2 years ...........c.....0... J 1M~
Frank’s character good ................ e 171
Has known Frank 17Tmonths ..........covviiiveeenn.nn. o We et 171
B Never met Frank for immoral purpose ............................. 171
— Works on second floor..........cc.ciiiiiiiiiiiiii i 171 .
Distances

Factory from corners of Hunter and Broad Sts., Marietta and Forsyth
Sts., Whitehall and Hunter Sts., in minutes, walking at moderate gait

Castro, L. M. ooiititiiiietii ittt ennenenensnensnenens 153, 154

_ Dobbs, L. 8..........c0ivviiiinnnnnn bahn e R 660 EREITASOE SaE KRR & 7
® April 27th o

' 3:25 a. m., called 10 FACLOTY ...vvvveveneninvncrnennnennennnnnn, 7

Went in W W. Rogers automoblle .............................. 7

. 3:30 a. m., reached factory...... ekl oo st o AT A A i 1 PO B [P Lo i 7

_ Body of deeeased described ..............c...... B SWERERERIES HRE s 7

Dobbs, WO aioine somnaion 56 MERERED S50 5650 1o sumemsins wore siea swiasiecess o 232
Matthews, W. M., told him Epps and deceased left car together 26th.. 232

____Dressing Room, Ladies’, on Second Floor

7:00 a. m., girls not supposed to be in..... Fn acwimre aes) SRS BN SR 173 .
) _ Flirting in ...................................... p— e 171-172
Ladies in factory reported. ... ....ce.eeeeeensenereennnnennnnnnnn, 173
- NO DALE TUD B -uioawnwvsn ansesms cavssaies vel ssan e sseiemeses i tas 173
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3 Not used for rest TOOmM. . ....vuuernniierenneneneeeneseennensneenes 173
Used only to ehange outer clothes before and after work hours......... 173
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. Duffy, J. B,

Cut his hand in metal POOM ........co0veivennnneniereriesnascanans 223
Bled profusely ..so: vovvaaivnnn dus sessises s vupiieds seeseeiaean s o 223
Drops fell on floor by machine. ....«...vvvrvreuereereneonrnennsns 223
‘Went to Atlanta Hospital................ e mneimrese i B b miH FRRLTS 223

—
EPPB;, QOOTEE: «iicvivin covi v ok wiasa wiasn wvis view simsmin siace kb8 HSiTe 51816 T e & 1

April 26th |
11:50 a. m., first saw deceased. .........civvvereerirrirrranaenonnes =k
12:07 p. m., last saw her.........cccevvevininanevinesnaennnanees 1

Deceased caught car into city at Oliver and Lindsey Sts.............. i §

- Witness caught same car at Oliver and Bell Sts............oo0vvvvves 1
Epps, Vera ................. P s tine swssssmimm SRR § %eis Wese veos 234
Minar visit to Epps home. .......coieviieieinnirinnionisanenneene: 234
Exhibits
Defense-

1, Time slip, April 26th (253); 2, Financial Sheet, April 26th (254);
3, Data Sheet, part of Financial Sheet (254); 4a, Packing Room Re-
ports (255); (256); 4b, Job Department—Reports (258); 4c, Daily
Deliveries (259); 4d, Tip Deliveries (260); 5, Average (of orders)
Sheet (260); 6, Value of Shipments (262); 7, Three pencil sheets
(263) ; 8, Eight carbons of letters (263) ; 9, Book containing back F'i-
nancial Sheets (264)’; 10, Receipt Book (264); 11, Comparison Sheet
(265) ; 12, Pages 56-57 of House Order Book (266); 13, Model of
Factory (267); 14-25, Original Orders (267) ; 25, Requisition Sheet in
handwriting of Frank, 7187 (269); 26, 7188 (270); 27, 7189 (271);
28, 7190 (272); 29, 7191 (273); 30, 7192 (274); 31, 7193 (275); 32,
7194 (276); 33, 7195 (277) ; 35, T197 (278) ; 34, 7196 (279) ; 36, State-
ment of Conley, May 18th (281); 37, Statement of Conley, May 24th
(282) ; 38 Statement of Conley, May 28th (283); 39, Statement of
Tonley, May 29th (289) ; 40, Cash Book of Company (292); 41, Cash
Book items (293) ; 42 Letter, Frank to Moses Frank (294) ; 43, Weekly
Report (295); 44, Envelope (296); 45, Weekly Report (297); 46,

e Weekly Financial Reports (297); 47, Pay Envelope found by detec-

tive MeWorth (297) ; 48, Club found by same (297); 49, Brown suit
worn by Frank April 26th (298) ; 50, Frank’s bank book (298) ; 51,
Cancelled checks of Frank (298); 52, First floor plan Selig resi-
dence (299); 53, corner Washington St. and Georgia Ave. (300) ; 61,
Plats of parts of factory (301); 62, Picture of Selig residence (301);

. 63, Picture. of Selig residence (301); 64, Picture of safe (301); 65,
Picture of outer office (301); 66, Picture taken outside of outer office

(301) ; 67, Picture of pay window (301); 68, Picture showing foot of
elevator shaft (301); 69, Picture of basement (301); 70, Picture of

X
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Exhibits—Defense—Continued

corner of basement where body was found (301); 71, Picture show-
ing passageway to back door (302); 72, Picture showing entrance

~ to factory (302); 73, Picture showing elevator shaft and trap door
(302) ; 74, Picture of metal room (302);'75, Picture showing place

- where cotton sack kept (302); 76, Picture of plating room (302) ; 77,
Picture showing where floor chipped (302); 78, Picture showing -
lathe (302); 79, Picture showing view 3rd floor to 2nd floor (302);
80, Picture showing elevator box (302); 81, Picture showing elevator
wheel (303); 82, 83, 84, views of metal room (303); 85, 86, views

" of metal room closet (303) ; 87, Blue print from which model was made
(303) ; 88a, b, ¢, d, jars containing particles of cabbage (303); 89,
extracts of minutes Walton Superior Court, showing indictment of
C. B. Dalton (303); 90, Testimony of Newt Lee at inquest (303); 91,
Testimony of Harry Scott, at inquest (304); 92, Scott’s report to
Pinkerton Agency (305); 93, Testimony of Policeman Anderson at
inquest (307); 94, Court proceedings releasing Conley from jail at
instance of Dorsey 307

Exhibits

State
A, Diagram of factory (243); B, Frank’s statement to Lanford (243) ;
— C, Cord found around neck of deceased (244); D, rag found around
neck of deceased (245) ; E, Fiive chips of wood (245) ; F, Shirt found at
home of Newt Lee (245); G, Jar of cabbage particles (245); H, Con-
_ley’s scratch pad (245) ; I, Portion of E. F. Holloway’s statement to
Dorsey (245); J, Affidavit of Minola McKnight (245); K, specimens
of Frank’s handwriting (247) ; L, small whip handle (247) ; M, clothes
of deceased (247); N, Copy of minutes of State Board of Health-
(247); O, Telegram, Frank to Adolph Montag (249); P, Time slip
punched for Dorsey by L. T. Kendrick (249) ; Q, portion of testimony
of Miss Hattie Hall at inquest (250); R, statement of Duffy accident
(250) ; S, Portion of affidavit of Lemmie Quinn (251); T, Conley’s
police record (251); U, Pay envelope found by Barrett (251); V,
Portion of testimony of Emil Selig at inquest (252); W, portion of
testimony of Mrs. Josephine Selig at inquest (252); Y, note found

by-pelieemen (253);-Z; note found by policemen (253).

Experiments at factory testing time of tragedy by Conley’s testimony.... 143

Expert Testimony
Bachman, George, M. D ;
Childs, Leroy, M. D.............. Y e,
Funk, Jobn. M. D. o ven sunisoinn susaianons s s soins i siows, s Lo isins 0 240

-'Haneock, Thomas, M. D ' '

Harris, H. F.,, M. D
Hurt, J. W, M D. ooveteieeeineteeeeeereesaneeaeeeeeranans _45




~ Expert Testimony—Continued

Johnson, Clarence, M. D

Kendrick, W. S, M. D

Niles, George M., M. D

Olnigtod, J. C., MDD caos cicus o sne oo wnwn emd Soindoin 657 5,579 i § i 161
Smith, Claude, M. D '
Westmoreland, Willis, M. D..... e Rumsnts niboi O I Y e

k)

Ferguson, Helen
April 25th
7:00 p. m. saw Frank and asked for pay of deceased refused
Frank said ‘‘I cannot let you have it’’
Had gotten it before but not from Frank

" Character of Leo M. Frank good

Elevator’motor at factory makes great noise..
Saturdays at factory
Worked on, at one time
Frank went to lunch at 1 o’clock
No women in office with Frank

Fleming, Miss Bessie
Frank’s character good
Has known him seven months

Flowars, Miss Eula May :
About Schiff getting data for Financial Sheet from her............... 104
On Friday nights ....c.cocceivieeenrasiiicccsrsssssnsanacnes ... 104
Conley’s character bad
Frank’s character good
Has known him three years
Never met Frank for immoral purpose
~Works on se¢ond floor

™~

April 27th and 28th
Saw Moses Frank in New York
Brooklyn, lives in
Rich relatives in, none
Frank’s father 67 years old
Letter, Frank to Moses Frank, identified
“Yondiff’’ means * Hohday 3
___Twenty thousand dollars, parents of Frank worth only.
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April 26th ‘
—11:35 a. m.; about, went to factory with Miss Corinthia Hall. .. 104
Witness saw in office Frank, two men, Mrs. White, and stenographer 104
11:45 a. m;, left factory............. R wro e RN SO e § S BB fee 104
Left in factory Mrs. May Barrett, and daughter, Mrs. White, Arthur
“White, Harry Denham, Frank, and stenographer -
Fourth floor
Frank permitted her to go to
Quinn, Lemmie, she met after she left factory
Telephone at factory, she used. :

April 28th
9:00 and 9:15 a. m,, Frank came to fourth floor
Came to see if factory running smoothly
This was his custom

April 29th _
Conley got two newspapers from her
April 30th
Conley got two newspapers-from her
Took papers and grinned
Conley, Jim

Character of, for veracity, bad
Never knew Conley to tell the truth
Fourth floor, worked on

April 26th
6:00 p. m. went to factory for shoes
— Clocks obscured from view from Frank’s office by safe door
Had known deceased all her life

Gheesling, W. H., ................. e SRR AR SR EEe wremmraaere e
April 27th
3:50 a. m., body of deceased moved to undertaker’s
Body and clothes of deceased described
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Glogowaln, M. H. ...... Sy beuts S e R ey myere/amceianin SEEAD s 170
‘Boarding house, keeps, Atlanta...... e e Y BRI R v wie anuane e 170
= . Frank’scharacter g00d ... ... ciceorciomerorrs deves s resssee 140
Goldatetn, M T . oo cu s s sinas o wesis sre s viae os R 169
Attorney at law, Atlanta ..........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieines 169
Frank’s character good .........ccovvivniuiinenninns s el Wale BEDH B 169
‘Has known him three and one-half years................... ..ot 169
Goldstein, M. J. .............coiiivnninnn o e R s 5 S s i e 127
April 26th
" 8:15 p. m., played cards, Selig home...........cocoovveiriniininn, 127
Fraok vead. 10 WAl < vuen sama von s swes ows seme o seen - HU— 127
Nothing unusual about Frank....... e T B SR B ST e 127
10:30 p. m., Frank retired ............. el W sl ST U SN @B e 128
His wife left 15 minutes after. ... ..o, 128
Gordon, George, Counsel for Minola McEnight......................... 224
— Asto her affidavit ........ovreeunnnreereoneororineaeraiieenas e 224

Gottheimer, -Harry
April 26th

10:00 a. m., was at Montag Bros. ...........ocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin 124
\ Frank came in at the time......... "Sin BT BRSO BT ST WV 8 124
e \ Asked Gottheimer to come to factory.......... T T T eeee 124
TN ~ "**Come up now or come after dinner”.............. ..o, 124
““If you can’t come now, come here after dinner’............ 124
Saturday ‘
\ Accustomed to go to Frank’s oﬁicg OBmoid 658 Biind Ho 1 B bl Dy Smsavech 124
‘Found Frank’s wife there once.............. Bwioin v wieaere O— 124
Never found any door locked.......oovoaoe. .. T 124
Greenﬁeld, e e siwn piasmain beate RASTE e ABRimaRiE A 142
SR Character of Leo M. Frank good ............................ S— 142
Grice, L. 0. e 43
Frank excited April 27th. . ooueeeeieiieiinnn.ns Sy e v e s 44
QAN MRS IOERIE ....c v & o oo ios exipmminmon wiebe sivson whi Soxeen S35 MBS 223
Says she saw Miss Rebecca Carson go into dressing room with Frank... 223
Other ladies on floor at time ..........cocoviiviiiiiniiiiiiiiinen, 223
Thalr names DOt FIVOIL o e siomiviios iemsae s awes e seviaes o 223
Haas, Miss C. L. ................ PSS L S . SRR SUUR_ 242
- Kendley, George, bitter toward Frank ..............oiiinaiininn. 242
= — _ } . " xiv === =——— |




Haas, Isaac _
- April 27th, did not hear telephone............. S 147 -
- ~ His wife awakened him........ ) i e T i 5 B O S s S L 147
- Frank’s character good FiTEinn scom wiacee a8 BRSNS S0 SE0E e me secens ey SHATT
- Hall, Migs Corinthia ........................................ e 103
———————— —April 26th | - L —
~11:35 a. m., she reached factory «............................ 103
Frank dismissing two men as she came in................... . | 103
Freeman, Mrs-Emma withher ... .......................... 103
11:45 a. m., left factory .......... ¥ Mare mome e wese Be BB S558 RO wracene 103
In factory at time were Arthur White, Mrs. May Barrett, her daugh-
ter, Harry Denham, Frank, and stenographer................. . 103
T “Frank’s office _
- Entered, with Mrs. Freeman .............................. .. 103
Frank writing in inner office ................. isarm 5 SN TS R 103
Stenographer in outer office .............................. ... 103
Telephone used by Mrs. Freeman ........................... 103
Holloway, E. F., witness met as she came to factory................. 103
Quinn, Lemmie, witness met at Greek Cafe ........ 355 AR Bemce mamimn Breve 103
- White, Arthur, sent for by Frank in her presence.................. 103
Witness saw Mrs. May Barrett, White and Denham on 4th floor, 26th. 103
_ Hall, Miss Hattie .......................ooooiii feeis 3 100
@  April 2th -
~ 10:00 a. m., saw Frank at Montag Bros...... BT BEERY b s memses e B 100
Asked by Frank to come to factory
to do some work ...................... MR S BN AN S T Gaier 100
“Please come oVer” ..............iieeiiiee 100
— “Well, come if you possibly can, as’ T have work for you to do”... 100
10:30 to 11:00 a. m., went to factory .......... SR ORI S 506 sslery 101
Frank not working on Financial sheet ............... i e (1) |
10:30 a. m. to 12:02 p. m., Frank did not work on Financial sheet. ... 101
Financial sheet — ‘ R . '
Frank did not work on, mornings of Saturdays ............... P 102
Had never séen, at time of inquest.............. e wiwcere s N €A 103
Testimony before Coroner was as to average sheet................... 102
i Confused the two sheets ..............oovueivinieen 102
“Witness had never seen a Financial sheet at time of Coroner’s inquest..—103
Haslett, R. B. .................0c0ovvvnini, N S VEIRE A0 T8 minsemratote x 29 —
April 28th ' -
~ Frank’s linen and clothes examined by, at Selig home............... 29

&7




Hays, Miss Ida
Conley’s character bad
Has known him two years .........cocoveveene. mnserne BRI R S B 170
Frank’s character good :
Has known him two years

Hewell, Miss Dewey
From Home of Good Shepherd, Cincinnati
Saw Frank once speak to-deceased
All other girls saw it
No concealment

Heyman, Arthur
Attorney at law, Atlanta
Frank’s character good
~ Has known him three or four years ..

Hicks, Miss Grace
Body of deceased identified
Had known each other about a-year
Employees paid off 6:00 to 7:00 p. m., 25th
_~ Witness saw Helen Ferguson at time
Floor dirty and greasy in factory
Frank, Leo M. -
Accustomed to come to metal room on inspection
Never spoke to girls except on business
Spoke to witness three times in five years
Hair combing at machines common
‘Hair of Magnolia Kennedy very like that of degeased
Office, can not see into from clocks
Paint on floor all over metal room...... ik

Bioohey, B Ja soovws von veanorn xomn o wthe Hedds SN R S W e s s 116
April 26th o |
2:00 to 2:15 p. m. saw Frank at Capitol. -
Time fixed how ..
Witness driving automobile
Came near colliding with car
Frank in the street car
Has known Frank for five years
They have had business dealings

Hixon, Annie (c¢)
April 26th
Frank called C. F. Ursenbach .-
“Tell Mr. Charlie I can’t go to the ball game”’




Hixon, Annie, (¢)—Continued
~April 27th
~ Frank and wife came to Ursenbachs’ to dinner.:
As was their custom
Laughed and talked
Nothing unusual about Frank
Not nervous or excited

Hoffman, Henry,
~ April 26th
Matthews’ car due 12:07 p. m. at Broad and Marietta streets

Matthews works under Hoffman
Has run ahead of time

Aprll 26th

Conductor English Ave. car ...........oooovvnns
—Peceased rode on car of, by herself
‘No boy with her
She was accustomed to ride on Hollis’ car two or three times a
week . . 84
Left car at Hunter and Broad Streets
Epps, George, witness knows
" Not with deceased, on car, 26th
.~ Oliver Street, Epps did not take car at
L —Undertaker’s —— |
Witness saw body of deceased at

‘Holloway, E. F.
April 26th

6:30 to 11:45 a. .m., at factory
7:00 a. m,, Denham and White came in
— 7:00 a. m., shortly after Alonzo Mann came
___ 8:30 to 8:45 a. m., Frank came
9:00 a. m., Darley came
9:10 a. m., Miss Hall came
9:30 a. m., Frank and Darley go to Montag Bros
10:30 a. m., Holloway checked freight
Witness dld not see Conley, 26th
_April 28th
Great excitement at factory
Compelled to shut down at 9:30 a. m.
Clark Woodware Company
Door to, not locked
Nalled up, but found open after tragedy
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Holloway, E, F.—Continued
Conley, Jim * °

Familiar with whole building
“Not duty of Conley, but of Holloway to watch door
Washing his shirt, 28th :
~ Tried to hide it from Holloway
Witness did not see Conley, 26th
Cords lying scattered all over factory
Dalton, C. B., never in or about factory
Day watchman at factory
. Distances measured by Holloway
Frank, Leo M.
~Never familiar with Conley ..
Never spoke to deceased
Worked Saturdays at factory......
~ Gantt, J. M., talked many times with deceased
Hopkins, Mrs Daisy
Never in factory after June, 1912
Immorality, none practiced in factory
Lee, Newt, first negro night watchman
Saturdays at factory
Frank worked en

Holloway at
Salesmen frequently there
Frank always saw them
Subpoenaed to Dorsey’s office

Hopkins, Daisy, Mrs
- Atkinson, Miss Laura, did not know
Basement of factory, never in
‘Character attacked by
Floyd, J. R., Goddard, R. M. Goddard, A. L., Ballard, N. J., Carr, —
Henry, Rice, J. S., Smith, Lem, Merk, W. P......ccoi0uvenss w221, 224
Would not believe her on oath ‘
Dalton, C. B.
Acquainted with
Has seen him once only, at hls house
Never visited factory with him
Never introduced him to Frank
Frank, Leo M.
» She and Frank .never spoke
Never visited his office, never in his office
Worked in factory formerly, packing department
Never in factory since June, 1912




Hunter, Joel C.

~_ Financial Sheet examined by............coovveiiininnn.. e 98
Testimony as to ................ Simalmomrasass miammmoels w58 ks BET0E Eoin b 98 - *

Wouldrequire3to3%hours..’..................................;

------------------------------------------------------

April, 26th _ .
Reached city on English Ave car................ e

------------------------------------

Jackson, Miss Irene ...................... WEHER 1S bmmns b SiassTafens mua® St 172
Dressing room, about Frank going t0.......coovveeeiierininennnnnn. 172 i
Flirting from factory windows...... e » 3 e T eI S e 172
Frank’s character good .............vvvvnenunrnnrnniieninnnnennenes 172
Hasknown him 3 years ............vvviiineinnnnnirioninineenennn. 172
Jefferson, Mrs. George W. ................ L .......... e 28
Cords in factory like cord about neck of deceased....... 5 S A mem e 28
) Paints, different colored, in factory..........ovvruiiiiiininnnrnrnnnn. 28 -
w Jones, Ivy (€) ............ S BT R R VR Tk o 5 Fis wssi e 233
- ' April 26th A
1:00 to 2:00 p. m., saw Conley at Hunter and Forsyth Streets........ 233
UBINE INIBRI00N & waminons sims wrossis i, 5o S e ersises Gawe SEw0s 5ot B ¥4 233
2:00 p. m., shortly after, left Conley at Hunter and Davis Streets.... 233
Jones, John Ashley....................... o S 164
April 8th, 1912, saw Frank and Mrs. Frank at factory...... SR 164
T Character of Leo M. Frank o
: R T Y - O —— S R R s ® B e o 164
Investigatod: DY s oonsnmisns swesmsinie sswsis qoesmeasseg soeeamm s 164
- e ‘Grand Jury — _ ;¢ ; g .
= = NP0 TettRY 00 5 s s 9 o506 47655 E0Tee 3199 97555 6. 60 0.810% 1,65 wieiom wmce e 165
I Matter of conscience . ........cocvvencentnrsieenceererennnronns 165

" Kauffman, I. U. _ | P v,
= . Description of parts of factory.............. RS 5 TR Rt B AT 148
- - Including scuttle hole..........covvviiiiieniiiiiiininiiiniinina.. 150




Kauffman, I. U.—Continued
Plats and Drawings

Basement of factory, Defense Exhibit 61...........vveereeeenn.... 1)) S
First floor of factory, Defense Exhibit 61, ......... PP 1) |
Ground floor of Selig residence, Defense Exhibit 52................ .. 299
Washington St. and Georgia Ave. corner, Defense Exhibit 53........ 300
<.. — i Kelley, W ibviieinpim e s s SR R S A S PRB 23 —
April 26th, deeeased not on car of Matthews and HOIS: ;05 5 vt o5 o 231 '
B R OO = T s s 5 ded Bl S haes s B i G e, 230
April 26th - .
Saw deceased in life............... Bt wavd SERBIACES SRR M, RS S Br & 230 —
Bitter toward Leo M. Frank
: Asher, S. L. (242); Stahl, M. E. (241); Brent, T. Y. (241); Haas,
e MRS T (42) S = = -
Kenllrlok, Lii T s ssins ons sivsission slees i s stitmusanin S0l soes 46 » 234
= - Night watchman, formér, nearly 2 years..................... SR 234
Clock needed setting then every twenty-four hours..... S, NN . 234
Would vary 3 to 5 minutes............. Fo acova eiea7e w5l wiseveiasions Sievera & 234
e Saturdays at xubt{‘:i‘}' -
Has 8000-Conley O wa: o aus vies iton ser s sowssis 667 emsess s 234
Witness usually reached factory on,1:45t02:30 p. m................ 234
Went then for B8 PaY. ... 75 57 e conseos vosssessesstonsosss ... 234
Kennedy, Magnolia .............ccoiiiiiiiniiniininnniinnininanennn, 104
April 25th
Frank did not pay off............ Ve sk s e & W sEEe R 105
Behiff Pald Off .o covowis ses v sws ame swws s s e R e
Ferguson, Helen, there at same time................. £ i 5% i 104
__She did not ask Schiff for deceased’s pay.......... P 104
She did not ask Frank for it......... I S-S 104
Witness came out with Helen Ferguson.................ooivnn.. 104
They walted for Grace HIEKS: . .. vove v woon wamn snvamas sivs snevas 104
Witness swears that Helen Ferguson said nothing about Frank*. ....... 104 -
Rerng, Misg HOION ... voox s somssas wum eaes v ebavsing se/esiiEns 5o 560 i 113
. April 26th : S _
I ~12:00 m., left work at Bennett Plg G055, 55m €95 55506 K008 Kiinomboria wioserarcs 113 S
1:05 p. m., Kress’ Store on Whitehall ‘Street..............0vennen.. 113
Went to Jacobs’ corner, saw clock....... e 113
1130 p, . m;, saw Frank ab-00rneR. . v v v wus v vieen sos smin s v 113 _
- Did not speak 10 Frank . ... ion soveins sveiens s e SR 113
No one standing between them .................... % 008 Bee wine 114
Witness not mistaken about time.......... S S5 BodbRwoms frecs won e st 113
——1:15 p. m., had appointment at corner...... Bt vy v e un ey tos 113
1:20 p. m., met friend at COrNer. ... ... vv''ieune e reennenrenennen. 113
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Kitchens, Miss Mamie ' 222
" Dressing 10om incident ............eviiiriniineiiiniriiieeeinas )
Frank asked if girls did not have work todo. .. ..........vvvvvvn.. . 222
Kriegshaber, V. H. ...... SR D F B S N ok D Bk BEWN BB 008
Frank’s character good ... ... T T e e Tas T T e A Eiee e 169
—— Hag known Frank 3 years ..............cco0vuuunnn il SN 4R B 169

Trustee Hebrew Orphans’ Home .........ovvvivinnrnrrnreneeeeennnns 169

~ Frank algo Trustee ....... ... sedses X WS R S S AN B 169 i

Brank oame to Home OTteth . cux v vas fuu wamanins ses wwven sa weei

Lane, AUTed L. ....ooorrrenee e ee et e e e e e

~ Brooklyn, lives ..........ec0.... e e 167
Frank’s eharaotor #00d o oupse v commmis swep o smes Ban saws 54 6 Buas i 167
- Knew him 15 years and at Cornell and Pratt Institute....... i aaleie b 167
Lasher, Herbert .............ccoiiiininnne. S i nminie wiwsy myssesa e sRvaseaed 168
Frank’s character good ..............., A — B s P (.
Knew him 3 years at-Cornell . vrisrerrvrvrrmmsvorsoss sossnses 168 o
Classmate and Toommate 2 years........ooovivevierininernennas 168
. He associated with best men....................coiiiiinne. L.. 168
Lassiter, R. M. ' 43
Parasol found by, in elevator shaft..............coiiiiiiiiiinineans 43 " =
® Not crushed or broken.......... T e SRS B QO S e e § 43
Leach, J. R, ......icoiiiiiiiniinnnnnnn.n. Yk oo, mowcn eiere mieim mSLS e 8 153
Street. car schedules ................ o e B S, SR ST e §INE 153
Lee, Charlie .. ... HETE s SR A T AR A B B R S YRS VR 133
~ Accidents in metal room . '
Duffy, J. E., in October, 1912.............cvvuun... s eeseesanaes 133
Blood spurted on floor ....... VRS S SRS deld 1T TE s 133 h
Passed by dressing room toward office................ccicvivunn. 133
— Wound dressed in office-.......... R L R E Atk e X TT 133
= Gilbert, employee named, in 1912................. . it 133
Hiind ent 0 mMeEBLTO0BE « cox smimmoso xims sinom momsern e wnsormis weevaea.. 133
——Wanrdrosged iniofflee . v.¢ ves seex e svanmuness vea o 1% Kin ssre wmzavens 133
Metal room ‘
Blood all over floor at times from cuts................... ... ..., . 133
Floors not washed or cleaned.......... e RS i S ... 133
_ Lee, Newt ....... a8 T LARlH SN R0 BT EAE EEA R A TS S T e wess 2
g ‘April 25th, paid off at 6200 P.ih...vveen s s wirainnns wme wiwes v sas . 2
Instructed by Frank to return 26th, at 4:00 p. m.....................




' Lee, Newt—Continued
~ April 26th
4:00 p. m., reached factory about
. Excused by Frank for 115 hours
5:57 p. m.,, returned to factory
6:00 p. m., Gantt, J. M., came from saloon
Went back to beer saloon in about half hour
~ 7:00 p. m., Frank phoned factory
7:00 p. m., first trip to basement
Witness says all factory doors unlocked evening of 26th
April 27th
3:00 a. m., body discovered in basement
Claimed he first saw it-from toilet
Notified police at once
Clocks punched 26th and 27th
Gantt, J. M. :
6:00 p. m., 26th, came to factory from saloon
~ Wanted to get a pair of shoes
Went back to saloon in half an hour
Frank had discharged Gantt
_Gantt a great big fellow, seven feet
Instructions not varied on 26th
Keys returned to Frank each morning
Officers arrest him

Phagan, Mary
Body discovered by Newt Lee
Described ;
Impossible to tell whether white or black
Notified police about 3:00 a. m., 27th
Rounds of factory by Newt Lee
First visit to basement 7:00 p. m., 26th
In basement each hour during the night
But not all the way back

Visited metal room and ladies’ dressing room on rounds

TN O B B o s g Bures wom sy scovans 5oy sgweistas, G IEISNG RERIRETS K § 114
April 26th s
1:20 p. m., saw Frank leave car. :
Time, how fixed
Lives across from Selig home
Not related to Frank

, Attorney-at-Law, Brooklyn
Frank’s character good
Has known him 12 years




Loeb, Cohen
~ April 26th
2:00 p. m., caught car Washington St. and Georgia Ave
Frank boarded this car at Glenn Street
They sat together
2:10 p. m., Frank left car at Ca,pltol
Car blocka.ded
Frank went West on Hunter Street
Had on blue suit, wore derby hat
Automobile of H. J. Hinchey almost collided with car
Nothing ' unusual about Frank
No marks on, no nervousness

April 26th -
~—1:50 to 2:00 p. m.,, saw Frank at Wolfsheimer’s residence
Talking to Mrs. Michael and.Jerome Michael
Cousin of Frank’s wife '

April 26th
Acquamted with deceased . cvoiveevioriversstviccenconsss N —— 229
Saw her, 12 N. Forsyth Street, about 12 o’clock
Time, how fixed -

April 26th
12:00 m., paid off in Frank’s office
Frank there at work
] Did not tell Conley to relieve his bowels
_ Did not see Conley at factory...
Took hay to factory, on '
Clarke Woodenware Co.
Used door once to haul trash
Conley, Jim
_Never watched or guarded door
" Not at factory afternoon of 26th
Frank’s office
Any one can see in
Doors partly glass
Never knew doors to be locked
Saturdays
3:30 to 5:00 p. m., often at factory
Never found front door locked




McCrary, Truman (¢)—Continued — - ——__
Never saw Conley sweeping on
Schiff and Frank worked on.

McKnight, Albert (c)
April 26th
1:00 to 2:00 p. m., claimed to be at Selig home
1:30 p. m., Frank came home, witness did not see Frank eat
Dining room at Selig home deseribed ..

McKnight, Minola (c)
April 26th
Cooked breakfast at Selig home
Frank ate shortly after 7 o’clock
1:00 to 2:00 p. m., Albert McKnight not there
1:20 p. m., Frank came to dinner i
2:00 p. m., Frank finished eating and left
6:30 p. m., Frank ate supper
8:00 p. m., cook left for the night
Detectives arrest her after the 26th
“Carried to Dorsey’s office ;
Confronted by Dorsey, McKnight and another
They tried to shape her testimony
They compelled her to sign false statement
MecKnight, Albert, not at Selig home, 26th
Wages not raised since tragedy
. Witness denies statements in affidavit which she swears she was forced
 to sign
Graves and-Pickett compelled her to sign a false statemént
They bulldozed and threatened her

McWorth, W. D.,. ..., ik ST 141
Club found by, at factory
Pay envelope found by, and Whitfield
‘Worked on case fifteen days
May 15th, made search of factory
Looked for mesh bag

Mangum, C. W.
Testimony of

; Mann, Alonzo

April 26th -
11:30 a. m., left factory




Mann, Alonzo—Continued
Frank had him telephone Schiff
Telephoned Schiff twice .
Left Miss Hall at factory with Frank
Saw Holloway, Darley, Irby, McCarley there
Office boy at factory '
Saturdays
Boy stayed until 3:30 to 4:00 p. m
Frank always at work at that time
Never saw any women in Frank’s office
Never saw' Dalton there, on

April 26th, played cards, Selig home
Frank sat reading in hall
Nothing unusual about Frank -y
10.00 p. m., Frank retired. ... S S weene 127

Marcus, Mrs. M. S iae e ST ST W8T WO MTACE N O G SEHATE S S 65 127
April 26th ' '
8:30 to 8:45 p. m., played cards, Selig home

Frank opened front door for her
10:00 to 10.30 p. m., Frank retired
Mr. and Mrs. Marcus left Selig home

Marx, Dr. David
Frank’s character good
Jewish Rabbi, Atlanta

Matthews, J. €. ...oovrrorenn e = e, 122

Montag Brothers, works at
April 26th, Frank at Montag Bros

Matthews, W. M. ...
April 26th, motorman English Ave. car
11:50 a. m., deceased boarded car at Lindsey Street
No little boy with her on car
This car on schedule time

Not with deceased on car, 26th
Witness did not tell N. C. Dobbs to contrary.........eees
Witness saw body at Undertaker’s

Mayfleld, Miss Emily, former employe
Worked in factory summer 1912. ..
Never saw Frank in dressing room while girls undressed
Works at Jacobs’ Pharmacy




Dalton, C. B., at- factory with woman in 1912
Woman weighed about 125 pounds

Merk, W. P.

Knows Mrs. Daisy Hopkins
Character for truth and veracity, bad

- Michael, Jerome
April 26th |
1:45 to 2:00 p. m., saw Frank at No. 387 Washington Street
Time, how fixed

Took dinner at No. 387 Washington Street
Frank spoke to him and his mother
Nothing unusual about Frank

No scratches, marks, no nervousness

Witness is practicing lawyer in Athens

Michael, Mrs. M. G. ...ttt ritteenneneneenennnnnnnnnns 114
_April 26th .
2:00 p. m., was at No. 387 Washington Street..............00uu... 114
Frank took car at Washington & Glenn Streets
Saw Frank and greeted him
Time fixed, how

With her, Jerome Michael, Julian Loeb, and Mrs. Hennie Wolf-
sheimer

Nothing unusual about Frank,
No scratches or bruises, or nervousness
Minar, John M, reporter
Epps, George
Visited night of 27th
Went out with Epps’ father
Epps did not say anything about seeing deceased on Satur-
day, April 26th R

Model of Factory
Defense Exhibit 13

. Montag, Mrs. A, .............. FTUE VAT RN PSRN Ram wisoTaaace RKORR SRR MBI 170
Frank’s character good
Has known him 5 years
Knows his character, how

Montag, SIgmMund, .............ovvernnnererinnsennnns N 128

Accidents in factory, cuts . 129, 130




Montag, 8igmund—Continued
April 26th ) :

Stayed about one hour .....  agass ST EETE
Talked with Gottheimer and Miss Hall
April 27th
Frank came to home of, after breakfast
A raw, chilly morning
Nothing unusual about him
No more nervous than Montag

Went to factory and made examination
Factory, saw nothing on floor of, 27th
Financial Sheet .

Of April 24th, received a. m. of 28th
Frank came to Montag Bros. daily
Insurance company ordered factory cleaned
Metal room, accidents numerous in
Pinkerton Detective Agency

Employed by National Pencil Company

Reports of, furnished to police first
Saturdays at factory

At factory, Saturdays, up to July, 1912

Nash, Philip .........ccoooiiiniiiiiiiii e % o 167

Frank’s character good
Has known Frank four years
Classmates at Pratt Institute

Office boy at factory April, 1912, to October, 1912
Saturdays at factory
Frank and Schiff worked

April 26th S :
Frank at Montag Bros. .................. e R T SRR AR S 123
“Asked to use Miss Hall at factory
Miss Hall was Nix’s stenographer .......:
She could not go until Mr. Montag’s mail finished
Frank wanted her that afternoon, 26th




Nix, M. 0.—Continued
Familiar with Frank’s handwriting. .

Financial sheet in his handwntmg
Worked for Montag Bros.

Owens, William, M.D. ................. v W R S SRR S RS 360 143

Experiments at factory, with
Assistance of Brent and Fleming
Grand Jury, letter to

Owens, W. B.

April 26th -
Reached city 12:05 p. m. on White. Clty car
Did not recall seeing on English Ave. car

Pappenheimer, Oscar

_As to Financial sheets ;
Parmelee, Mrs. J. 0. .................000uoiinin .. TR T A weial e 170
Frank’s character good

Pay Envelope

Found at factory by McWorth & Whitfield
Exhibit 47 of Defense

Thanksglvmg, 1912
10:20 a. m, Conley left
+ 11:00 a. m, Payne left

Frank and Schuf worked together
Never.saw women or drmkmg
Worked until 4:00 p. m.




Pictures (By J. Q. Adams)
Factory
Basement, Def. Ex. 69

Cotton sacks, place kept, Def Ex 75
Elevator views

-

Shaft and trap door, Def. Ex. 73
Wheel, 4th floor, Def. Ex. 81
_First floor
Entrance, Def. Ex. 72
~ Second floor
Cotton sacks, Where kept, Def. Ex. 75
Floor chipped, Def. Ex. T 5
Metal room, Def. Ex. 74, 82 83, 84 302, 303
Closet to, views, Def. Ex. 85,86 ....... e L R 303
- Lathe in, Def. Ex. 78 o

Pay window, Def. Ex. 67

Plating room, Def. Ex. 76
Safe, in office, Def. Ex. 64

Third floor
View from to second floor, Def. Ex. 79
Fourth floor
Elevator wheel, Def. Ex. 81
Selig residence
.Two views, Def. Ex. 62, 63

Pinkerton Detective Agency W g
Employed by National Pencil Company to find guilty party

Conley, Jim

Accused him of murder
Effect of thison Conley ...........ocovvvvevnnnnnnn.. e isns . 119

Suspected him and talked with him, 28th

Forelady, head of pohshmg department

Frank, Leo M.

¢ A perfect geﬁtlema\n

Never heard anything against him
Nothing immoral about him




Pollard, OC. L.

S i : ~ =5 Never_CIGarned _at all'_-_ oooooo l llllllllllll g R R R I N N S RN R

Financial sheet examined by ...... e i wiash wrwAC wiara wpa mieTRORR ST - 99
TERLIMIODY B8 10, 5 it sasacsimmrrrs e o wet T o0 wdns vis s Tars 99
Would require exceeding three hours .............ooovvrrnnrnnnnn.. 99
‘Pride, Arthur (¢) ........... G s R TS SR T e 134
~-Always worked on second floor.............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 134
| Except Saturdays .........coiiiiiiiiiinieerinneerernneeeennnnens 134
— On Saturdays, all over factory ...................... swcave wrava s B Sl 134
Conley, Jim,
Character of, for veraeity, bad. o5 .. ... viviieinnesossinsssssseesss 134
Never associated with Conley .............c.ccunnnn. e e s iny 14
Never saw Conley watching door on Saturdays..................... 134
Elevator . . :
Can be heard when machinery stopped ..........coovvivrnnnrnnnns. 134
Makes TOATIDG MOIBE .. ..ovvvuvrenniennnernneeesnnesnnennnsnns 134
Motor makes 1oud MOIBO. «v vov v s s ssresie siss sws ewies s 134
- Can hear while hammering going on.:...........c.0vuvuun... 134
- Saturdays
Has not missed one since July, 1912........c..ccvvivnn... Ceesesens 134
Worked until 4:30 p. m., and all over factory...... 1 s wewgwn § Db
Never saw any women or drinking in office ......... « seE S 8 134
N Never saw Conley watching door .............................. 134
Quinn, Lemmie ..............utiiiiiiiii i e it 106
April 26th :
" Went to factory tosee Schiff .........ovvrriririiinrineninnenns, 107
Often went to factory holidays .........cvvivviniennnnnnnnns i JOT
: _ Witness found doors unlocked, open ............coivivunnnnnnnn. 107
- _ 12:20 p. m., reached Frank’s office .................. %8 BN Celmn sraacone 107
. Might have been 12:25 p. m. ....covvirtiiiiiiiiiiinenrnnnnn. 107
e Saw nothing of Conley, Monteen Stover, nor deceased ........... . 107
Barrett, R. P., pointed out 8pots ..........ooviiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnrnnn. 106
Asked Quinn about reward, said he had been told he had good chance
FOR TOWARA: v s5is v wos wawaiess swwiinies e v Sy aiate ¥R i O 106
- — One man told him he could get $2,700, and other $4,500............ 106
~ —————Frank, Leo M. s
Never spoke to deceased .........c.oovvuniienininieinnnnnnnrnnnnnnees 107
Hair found on lathe ... ....cccvoereocnnssonnons cns voes snesonn onsss 106
Could not tell Color ....oovunniiiniii ittt ettt eennrennnns 106
Only 601 8 sranaE ... cov wono son eqgssines vuenines esi oas savsss s 106 -
~ No blood spots where hair found ............... et sanat oy i JOT-
Haskoline always all over the floor of metal room............c....... 106
Metal room floor very dirty ..........coivivvnvnnn.. e b e vy o b 106
Could not tell whether spots were blood, paint, or varnish........... 106




Quinn, Lemmie—Continued

Spots, could not tell whether of paint, varmsh or blood
Spots of blood
Often on floor from cuts
Witness relates instances of cuts where parties bled profusely and
passed by spots found by Barrett coming to office to have cuts
dressed

R

Conductor Hollis said George Epps and deceased on his car, 26th
Denied by Hollis :
Rich relatives in Brooklyn, none
Frank’s parents worth only $20,000

Robinson, Miss Ruth

Saw Frank once speak to deceased
Called her by name

Rogers, W. W. ...... T \ GH6 wiimmmamrers mpse wceim nla

April 27th
5:00 to 5:30 a. m., at factory, and heard Starnes phone conversation
with Frank _
Description of body of deceased
Excrement in elevator shaft
Mashed by elevator, 27th
‘‘Healthy man’s excrerhent e
Factory
Frank opened safe readﬂy and told about paying deceased Saturday.. 13
_He opened safe with no difficulty
Tlmp clock
Frank suggested putting in new slip
Slip taken out

Jrank, Leo M. T
Wnt-foz,-mth-Deteetmeﬁlack

Frank carried by undertaker’s
He consented readily to go _
Stated he did not know her by name................. .
“Witness never saw Frank before 27th ...........¢.......... 2wy |
Knew nothing of Frank before 27th ‘ '
Undertaker 8
- 'Witness saw body at
Frank just behind Rogers




— 8chiff, Herbert G.
B April 25th
Frank and Schiff left factory together 5 :00 to 5:30 p. m
April 26th
Schiff intended coming to office but overslept
Was-called twice by Frank over phone
April 27th
Schiff saw Frank, no bruises on him .
~April 28th-
Factory closed, too much excitement
Girls standing around crying
Had to suspend work
Witness says Conley badly scared
~April 29th
Frank and Schiff together at factory
. Frank did not speak to Conley
Average Sheet
" Discussed and described

Blood spots
Fingers often cut in various parts of factory, brought to office for
attention . . ........ooiiiiiiili e e it SRR NS e
Cash kept at factory $25.00 to $50.00
Clarke Woodenware Company
Door broken open

ﬂﬂ'l"l ] Fal il Tima

CULLICY,, Uil

Badly scared at factm'y, 28th

“I am secared to go out, I would give a million dollars if I was a
white man”’ :

Could write, Schiff knew it, but did*not know Conley denied it 97
Frank told Schiff of Conley’s watch ccntract and Schiff told Pinker-




Schiff, Herbert G.—Continued
Unreliable . .

* Women got him out
Taken off elevator because unreliable ...... ahivie wane wimwn wcwn wiwtes 7R
Dalton, C. B., never saw him in factory
Elevator
Dark around
Door to, easily lifted
Motor box not kept locked
Noise in operating
Ferguson Helen
April 26th, paid off by Schiff
Did not ask for pay of deceased
Financial sheet

Testimony as to
~ Frank, Leo M.
As to nervousness
Never spoke to deceased
————Hair;impossible to tell color of
Haskoline splashed all over metal department
Negro, unknown, seen by Mrs. White

Notes
Similar paper found all over plant, swept into trash
Order book, 26th, Frank’s entries
Pads, scattered all over factory
Picture (State’s Exhibit A p. 243), defects-in.
Pinkerton Detective Agency
Frank phoned Schiff to get
Safe in office examined by Schiff for mesh bag; no mesh bag found
Salary of Frank and Schiff paid by check
Saturdays
Frank and Schiff at factory
Frank never known to leave until Financial Sheet completed. .. .....
Stenographer seldom there, on
Witness named others at factory as Denham, Pride, Holloway
Thanksgiving Day, 1912 :
Cold and rainy
Conley, Jim, and Frank Payne there
- Conley left at 10:30 a. m
. Not there after noon

i a2




Frank, Leo M. :
April 29th, Frank taken into custody by Scott and Black
~ Witness first saw him, 28th, at factory, when Frank related in detail
his movements on the 26th
Lee, Newt
Frank talked to, readily, at Scott’s request
Reports furnished Frank’s attorneys
Search of factory by Scott

Selig, Emil
April 26th

Frank breakfasted before Mr. Selig

1:15 p. m., Selig. came to dinner
Found Mrs. Selig and Mrs. Frank eating

1:20 p. m., Frank came to dinner
Frank sat-down and ate
No scratches or bruises or marks on Frank

Wives left husbands eating

6:30 p. m., next saw Frank at supper
7:00 p. m;, ate supper

Party of friends came after supper to play cards
Frank and wife did not play
Reading baseball story, Frank laughed and came in and.told of a
baseball joke .. |
While game was in progress, Frank would answer the door bell.... 111
10:00 to 10:25 p. m., Frank retired
His wife followed soon after
They told Mr. Selig good night
- 11:00 p. m., the party broke up..
April 27th
- Murder not discussed by Selig
No scratches, marks or bruises on Frank
Talked little with Frank, Sunday 27th
Dining room
~ Position of sideboard unchanged
Has never seen servants move it........
Kitchen, next to dining room
Small passage between ..............000uuun... Lt L S R R - 110

™ —




April 26th
'1:10 p. m., had dinner
1:20 p. m., Fiank came jo dinner
He sat down and ate .
1:30 p. m., ladies left table
. Frank stlll eating
'6:10 p. m., saw Frank at Jacobs Pharmacy
~ Stopped at Mrs. Loeb’s, coming home
6:30 p. m., reached home.:
Found Frank ‘there ahead of them
No scratches or bruises on him
- Nothing unusual about him ..
6:45 p. m,, all sat down to supper
Frank at supper with others
7:15 p. m., supper finished ............ o e s SR SR S6T RS
Card playing after supper '
Frank and wife did not play........ e e
Frank sat in hall reading o
Answered door-bell at times
“Read baseball story and came in and told them of joke in story 112
-10:00to 10:30 p. m., Frank went to bed
His wife followed soon
~12:00 midnight, others played cards, until
Telephone
Mrs. Selig did not hear, in mght
___April 27th -
11:00 a. m., saw Frank
No brmses, scratches, marks on him
Reached home with wife. . :
Frank spoke of erime committed.
Did not speak of youth of deceased or brutality of the crime.
April 29th
11:00 a. m., Frank arrested
MecKnight, Albert
Not at Selig home, 26th
McKnight, Minola
Denies affidavit contents ...........covvuun.. R, 2 T - N
Wages of '

. Selig Residence

. Kitchen and dining room described by Bernhardt C. W

Fisher, Julius F

Kauffman, I. U., with plats _

Wood, H. M. ............. P P T R TR T Bovassdves e 152
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Belig Residence—Continued

Pictures of, Defense Exhibits 62, 63........0...000vuevnvnnnninn... 301
- Plat of ground ﬂoor Defense Exhibit 52..........., ses saes 5 Az el 299
BIROVIRE B Bz srwsvecacsts S 1353 S SR 5 e s womenae e hocas 242
Pawned watch with M. B, MeCOY ....ovuvvvensneineinesnnennnnnns 242 -
Small, Miss DOGA ... ..oovyeetieetieeeiee e, e 120
4 April 29th, at factory
8:00 to 9:00 a. m., Frank talked to Miss Carson on business. . ........ 120

Conley worried her LR JUOTOF 21 s vireve v 1y 3Uaoc 5650 SIGTIY T Seas B B 120
Asked for newspapers ................ununn. R L T — 120
Bought extras ........ Semite SR B CEEIN S Ee e L R . 120
Could read all right...........c.covvvu.... S RO 120
N Said ‘“‘Frank just as innocent as I am’’ and ‘‘God knows I am never
around this place Saturdays’’....... Evmsears e A GG SR b vees 120
Elevator makes noise, shakes building................. Ao &5 o e 120
Fourth floor, works on ........o.cvvvvrvvvnnnnnnnn.. 0 T 120
*" Frank did not talk to Conley, 29th .......... P e s wmee s e 120
- -szth, By s e s e Ceetsnssnsvemenees 1B . .
- ~ Barrett, R. P. - ' '
Afterthereward ..................... AR hmmme ys sz Sars aeg & 137
Counted imaginary dollars .............o.ovvvunsunennonnnnnn.. 137
: Laughed as he counted ...............oovvuvuniniirnin ... 137
§— = Metal department : ; _
' Works in, with R. P. Barrett ..........o.ovvueunninninnennnnnnn .. 137 B f
Barrett —ta‘l'ked—cOHtMIEH'y—of—rmmd—he “was to get, $4,300, spoke
OF it ANy T8 « s cumiamns K6R5e55 555 555 banmoslnprerers o s 137
Klein, Milton ............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiie i 137
Conley, Jim =
Klein at jail with Frank when Conley was brought | (——— T 137

Sent word Frank would talk with Conley if L. Z. Rosser advised it.. 137
Frank would not talk with detectives at ,]8.11 except upon advice of
- . L. Z. Rosser ............. Wb e sosTe BCT BTSN SIEE WSO B hieeeras e ere 137
: Thanksgwmg 1912.

4:30 to 6:00 p. m., saw Frank, and in evening at dinner dance at

BAUBIRE «.ocovs vovpins o st e s s a0t rotenesnnasncsacansesone e .. 137
N Smith, Mrs. Minnie ‘ . A
Dalton, C. B., not known at all to her......... i e mase wimiess seie (e 415 135
Snowball, see Gordon Baﬂey | - _
SonnRA B < ¥ HETHREES T s R e st (% iiwseorn 169
Frank’s character good ....... Ve eid S aie e miee e eie S s ST 169

Superintendent Hebrew Orphans’ Home ...... ST s ea e e T eeenesnes 160"




oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Stanford, Mell ...... D O B T R onwcrae eomie ssoin

Spots seen by, in metal TOOM ... ... . iiiieiiiiiiiiiiii e 27 -
Swept metal room, 25th ............. B A e 27 -
T Starnes, J. N, ... ) e 10 |
April 27th, 5:00 to 6:00 a. m., went tofactory...........cooveneinnnn —310————
- Basement of factory examimed ............. T —— ee. 10
‘Blood, what looked like —
April 28th, saw, near dressing room...J2 .......coevererens o 10
Chipped Up PArts ....oeovveeeerosencneans 10 //
Covered with white substance. ........oaeeeeerieroriiinernnens 10
Clocks, examined by, with Hendricks ..........ccoovviiniievieinnen. 10 .
Cords, knots in;—deseribed. .. ....oviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 10 > e
Many like cords all over factory ............. T —— , 1
Frank, Leo M. — '
Called over phone by Starnes .........cooevvviiiienneiiniiieeen. 10
Frank asked for night watchman........... S e iams moge sbiuiamsns o0 10
= Lo Sent for by Starnes ..........coceiviiiiiiiiiiiiiie, R e 10
Rogers, W. W., sent to Selig Home...........cooovurnininiininenes 10 -
'Stelker, Joe )
‘Charge of varnishing department .............ocoeienieeniininanen. 138
Conley,. Jim . :
Character for veracity bad................. e Sl E BATA s ete 138
 Tn ChaiBEADE .. .vovnrnrerncnrntntratorerstatectitattiiaianiitna 138
Floors of factory always dirty and greasy.............. ,din baes ST WA 138
— TFrank viewed-body of deceased at undertaker’s...................... 139 -
Nervousness . - - ¥ ' :
- "Everyone .at factory nervous ............oooven. s Sl WA B s 138
— Witness nauseated by tragedy .............ooooooienns s v S 138
: i Spots seen-by Barrett  _  ——
Flg . Seen by Stelker ........cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i T I 138
' “Very much like va.rmsh stains or coloring, could have been made by
red varnish .......ccceveenenns PO S o 138 :
Stover, Monteen
/™ April 26th |
_ 12:05 p. m., was at fACLOTY ..ooovrirrieriiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 26
i 12:10 p. m,, left factory ........ wesvenssoaunas SRR ETRERY 26
— " ‘Went there to get Pay.....covvererrrianereees e zg

Frank’s omce ooooooo R R -..l.lI.I-...ll.'t‘!l.ﬂ.-‘llt“l-.. --------




Stover, Monteen—Continued

Did viot noe RN =2 o s Tussis sssnsevie dems e et Sves i 26
Did YOt 806 HBEE  yiusiins siwis 555 5765 550 ¥ eRTid e 555 maversiesae. ccare 519 ionm oun 26
Did not see wardrobe ... ........oviiiiiiiiriiiii e 26
Metal room door elosed . ...........vviiinvnniniie s 26
This door sometimes open and sometimes closed.............. vaee 20
Monted: on. Tourel BOOr . oo v s es Tk W6 HRSESHEERIE ST G 26
=
Thomas, K. T, civilengineer ..................coovvvvnnnnn SR ST, B 153 .
Distances to factory, from _
Broad and Hunter Sts., 333 feet, 115 minutes walk......... S 153
~Marietta and Forsyth Sts., 1016 feet, 414 minutes walk....... | Farats v 153
Whitehall and Alabama Sts., 831 feet, 315 minutes walk............ 153
Walked at’ Buir @aits ..o sov vownss sos sosaows sk A 153
Thompson, Mrs, Mattie. ..., 173
Frank’s character good ...... e o AT WY WA BN S a5 sPeie T 173
Has known him 3 years v e e erevrerrrrvrrrrrrrreee 178 —
Tillander; O———.............: T8 R B RS AIeRE AR SR S RATA I WIEYe S SETB e 8TE B8 233.
April 26th
11:40 a. m., at factory with E. K. Graham and saw negro ............ 233 —
Frank at Work in inner office ............ ST TR Tt 233
Stenographer in outer office.............viiiiiiiiiiii e, 233 '
Lodd, JORN: W sicicine von mivnwning Son svmaewns e s G Samesias sess i 168 '
Assistant Pur. Agt., Crucible Steel Co. Plttsburg ..................... 168
Frank’s character good ........ ......ccovven.. By Bamn e mre aiaCw A BayNNiwss 168
Has known Frank many years............coouuuvniviinnnevennnnns 168
Knew him at Cornell............c.ooovuiiivninninnnn.. . . 168
Turner, W. E. :
Says he saw Frank once talk with deceased..-............... S v 008
Could not describe her ........ O R S S 223
Other girls near at time*...............7..... S i o e LT T 223
L ‘Witness unable to name any ome...........ovvverrrreeneinmnnnns 224
Professed not to know any ...........ccovviiiiirinninn— .. 9
U
TUERembAOI, 0. B, .. Jovii o anin sion Son 050008 50 567080 wrmce stmmers srad viaiece 125
April 25th, phoned Frank to go to ball game next day............. .. 126
April 26th . ; . '
1:40 p. m., reachedhlmhome ................... e e S e 125 =
His cook gave him Frank’s message......... ST R e TR i B 125

XXXVili




_.\
: ﬂ'rseﬁbacﬁ,_o. F.—Continued
B April 27th

Frank at his house
No scratches or bruises on Frank .......c....coviiiiiiiiiiinnn. 125
Saw Frank again Sunday afternoon and evening ................... 125
— Frank told him about tragedy ........coovvvivvreiiiiseaninenns 125
4:00 p. m., Frank borrowed rain coat ............ T s s ¥ B s ne 126
6:00 p. m., raincoat returned ..... ..ol 126
Bridge played at Ursenbach home on ‘Saturday nights ................ 126
Frank and wife did not play poker ............... j asle wiwiie siea et wOe o 126
Ursenbach, Mrs, C. F. ... ..ooiiiiniiiiiiiiiiii i, 126
April 26th
1:30 p. m., took phone message from cook .................iiill 126 -
April 27th .
No bruises-ormarkson Frank ........oovviiiiiiiiiiiininiiinnanns 126
. . Raincoat borrowed from husband .................. A, - 126
B ' Told of tragedy by Frank ........ g v A T e ST e R 126
Frank did not accuse 8ny ONe .........coveeeiriurerirnrenineenns 126
—~— Didn’t say that he suspected anyone ....... i e 127 -
_ Witness said Frank was sorry he had let J. M. Gantt in factory...... 126
el " (antt discharged for dishonesty ......... soiwemne o et d ove noe wie 127
| A\ '
= Vanderhoef, J. E. ............. $ims won acmsmrasassihise SR et SHD il FA S8 5 168 |
8 Foreman of foundry, Cornell ........ PR —— Fer R 168
Frank’s character good .........ccoovvviunnn. erdln owin AR WTH e e 168
Knew Frank tWo YeATS . .. ios vavssios sns osins s sasiaon saasaas s 168
At Cormell ......cvvniiiiiniotiriiiniintieitiinntiiteanaenenans 168
WwW.
WARGOEE, B, - coos vocons wum snios i rmses s s s sis s oo swin i ... 42 I
April 29th '
10:30 to 11:30 a. m,, in front of factory ............... .. oiiit. v, 42
7 Saw Frank walk to window and twist hands............. s 42
NN Seemed that Frank was nervous........... 5o GRS DR SO Sl R o 42 —
Washington Street and Georgia Ave.,, Corner :
~ Plat showing, defense exhibit 53 ... .......vtvvvrrrrereeoenanaaeneess 300 B
Weinkauf, Godfrey ..................... 6 SR S alerEle s 8 A e ate s 133
Saturdays at factory : - —
3:00 to 5:00 p. m., visited TREEOTV: i ..o svess 6008 Siieaas B GWiawR 133
Would stay about two hours ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiniiiinnn.. 133
" Frank, Schiff, and Holloway there ................cooiiiiiiinnin 133

Superintendent of lead plant ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiian e wera wiova



~White, Mrs, J. A. ......... e s R %6 e 8wl s e e 21

chks, My QEnoe.s oo vnes vios s sows Ve v 15 16

April 26th | N
11:30 a. m., saw her husband at factory ..............ccvvvviiinnn. 21
- Frank, Miss Hall, Denham, White, and two other men,-all in factory-
catthat time ..ottt it it i i et i et e 21
11:45sheleft ........coo0vvnen. feveeennen e eieiraeeeaiaeaaas 21
— 12 30p i she reburmed .. s voviwavna coreas cen s ses e T Toens 21
1:00 p. m. she left, she saw Frank in his ofﬁce as she left, he was at
WOPK & o cnivne soi w50 a0s SEPEE VoS TR W SRR R S ek e 21
1:00 p. m. she saw unknown negro at foot of stairs sitting on ‘box as
cshe left factory . .ovviein ittt ittt it i ittt e 21
White and Denham worked fourth floor ................ ..ol 21
Willett, T. H. ..... e ee et eea e e eeerennsiaanetnateneonsonntonarenns 151
Pattern, or model, of factory ...................0ntt. T S SN § 151
Deofenge KXt A8 ;00606 v v ion vrewvrswen sun vos o Wi e sy GOt
Made by blue.print, Def, BIX. 87 .. ivs cosanevess somnsie sosases e 303
Witnesses _ :
-( TESTIMONY FOR STATE.
S _ - —D——— 0——RD —RO-
Andexson; 'W. B oo svi s s s seiis sem io 39 40
Barretf, B B. coamen comsman ono amen e oo sl 26 27
Beavers, J. L. ....... e BT SRR B ST B S 43 43
Blaok: JOhN B . s vinn sawvnws sun sswpnss sos 17 18 19 19
Coleman, Mrs. J. W......ovvrenrininnnnnnss. 1 1 1
Coleman, Mrs. J. W. (Recalled).............. 20 |
Conloy; JAIMOE s vsswns wewxvns saa wann e 5 ot 52 59 73
Dalton, C. B. .....Lccceeeiiiiiiinrsnnnenns 50 50 51, 52 51
Darley, N. V. ... i iiiiiiiiiiieenennnns 32 33 38 39
Darley, N. V. (Recalled by Deft.)...... i i 74 76, 77 76
Dobba, Lii Biviivin inn swnn osn wovmnms vt sowaars 7 8 9 9
Dobbs; L. S., (Recalled for State)....... o 10
Epps, George ........coviveniivinnnnn. iy 1 2
Epps, George (Recalled by Deft.)........... 5 80-
Febrandy, G C. ocaienn asen s sos veon saimasis 41 41
Ferguson, Miss Helen ...................... 42 42" 42
Ganth, I M. s ovnanis com sweessenmese 20 21 )
Gheeslinig: W H.. s cosvson ssnsesvnes das o ; 44 45 45
Geice, In 1O:; uiois v veenees o BT T : 43 44 44
Harms,DrHF......’.......-..........,..-.. 48 49
Haglett, B.. B.. o coe v s o snvess e O 29 - 29




Witnmel—Continu_e;i—' B

Holloway, E. F

Holloway, E. F. (Recalled by Deft. ) R s
. Hurt, Dr. J. W

Jefferson, Mrs. George W

Lassiter, R. M
Lee, Newt (Colored)

McKnight, Albert
Mangum, C. W. ....ccivuvirecrannancnannes

- Parry, H. L. .

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Rogers, W. W. _ ...................

Rosser, S. L.
- Scott, Hari'y

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Scott, Harry (Recalled for State).......
Smith, Dr. Claude ..........co0vveenn (o'
Stanford, Mell .

_ Stanford Mell (Recalled for State)..

Starnes, J. N.
Starnes, J. N.,

llil.l..l".lll.'l....—‘-—-— OOOOOOO

(Recalled for State)....... s

Stover, Miss Monteon

_Waggoner, R. L. .............. ! e R T
White, Mrs. J. A '
Whlte, Mrs. J. A. (Recalled for State)

Ballard, N. J.

Benediet, Dr.

Born, J. T. ..

Boyce, Leon

S'I‘A'.l‘l ‘RESTS,

STATE IN EEBUTTAL.

0 T S

N R R B A B R R R B I LU

Caldwell, M. G. ......... I R — e via

... Carson, Miss Rebecea .....cvo0vunns o oo
~ Carst, Miss Marie
Cato, Miss Myrtie

Coleman,JW . esaions % mbebid

“Cook, W M

.................. lesesssnnnans

221
228
221

- 221
221
221 -

222
221
221

233

221




* Witnesses—Continued | | ' P

Craven, R. L. ......ovvvviniennennnnnnnns 226 -
Davis, Miss Mary 221
“Dobbs, Sergeant L. S ...................... 232"
Dobbe, W O, o smnnins sissss ssmsissim 232
Donegan; Mrs. C. B s 6,655 Sk s Che 221
Duffy, J.E. ........ovvvvnnnn. X 223

Blder, W. J. oot iieeieeeneannennnn, 221
Epps, Vera ' 234

Floyd, J. R. ..oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininannnns 221
Funk, Dr. John _ 240

Gantt, J. M. ...... RN BB SRR S s 233
Goddard, A. L. S g e 3 - 221
Goddard, R. M. .......c0oviivrvnnnnnnnnnnnns 221
Gordon, George 224
233

221, 223

Hale, Wi O s consupss cons v sosnans seais 221
Hearn, J: L. « cossssvins vowaies ia T Saian 221
- — Heifner, F. P. 221
Hendricks, J. H. .....oovuiuivennenrnennnnns 229
Hewell, Miss Dewey ....... T L Tmm— 222
Hoffman, Henry ...... 4 BT A AN B 230
Hollie, Wi T ssvvvas soweans sBuisss ids etie oo 235
Houston, A. B Sisils Rule v 221
: 221

231 -

Johnson, Dr. Clarence 7 - 236
Johnson, Mrs. HL.R. ...................s, Wil 221
Jolngony, B V.. ¢ vavi i vaa smnsias e s sais 221

Jones, Ivey (¢) : 233

L T 234
Kendley, George 230
231
222

MeCOow; M. B, ,.viiioi Suvwvids semmnes vom i 229
MeBwing, J./C: cvaoi samsaes soiesns sa i s 229
MeQinnin; 0. B. ;.usn.5i sons ssnssnnans P 221
McKnight, Albert ' ‘ 226
Matthews, W. M. .......oovvirerrnnnnennnnn. 232

¥ S xlii




Maynard, C. E. wcrcoins e v v Cereience see ¥
Merk,_W.___P. 5

Niles, Dr. G M. . .veveenernennnnns S iy v B
Owens, W. B. ..

Scott, Harry

~ Smith, Miss Carrie
Smith, Lem .......... e 6N SIS

BESERE & N o oias smes s et siass 563 gniwnass

Witnesses—Continuedf

oooooooooooooooooooooo

L T

Patrick, WoO, «ooronrone oo
Pegis,/ﬁiss Nellie

ooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Sa /Pickett, E.H. ....... R R R R
.~ Reed, J. D.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Bice, J. .. viouewis oo wans ia Ly
Robinson, Miss Ruth

--------------------------

Rogers, W. W. ......ciiiiiiiiiininnnns. -

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

ooooooooooooooooooooooooo

D

234 —

224
238

28—
i

221
227

235

- 221
222

232

234

921
221

- 235

c
235

239

235

&

U THARAEr, 0. .urrrririier i
Turner, W. E. .................

- Wallace, Mrs. Mary E. ..........c0ivevnnnn.
Winkle, Miss Estelle
Wright, W. M. T..00000 o000

Adams, J. Q. ..ottt ettt :

Adler, Charles

s Albert, Prof. 0. D «:acsieesds sajos vo'svassiais
Ambyose; B Li o0 i svion san sicion ofeis aosesinss
cARAION; As N i cvis oo i noss v ssnines
Atherton, Miss Grace
Atkinson, Miss Laura

Bachman, Prof. George
Bailey, Gordon
' Barnes, Miss Sarah
Barnes, Mrs. ..................

Bauer B T wvn ceitysos o R
Baner; W . covevessosens -
Beard, Emma (c¢)
Bornard, J. vioosniosisiosssos T ;

............

ooooooooooooooooooooooo

ooooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooo
-----------------------------
ooooooooooooooooooooooooo
llllllllllll
oooooooooooo
............ -

llllllllllllllllllllllllll

232 .

223

221
221

221

- TESTIMONY FOR DEFENDANT.

150
220
168
135
147
220

135 .

154

136

171
220
135
220

121 - -

220

223

151

147

135

155
136

171

136

122

147

156

148




_ Witnesses—Continued

, D c RD RO
Berihardt, O. W. .iivines sinvions vopvree von's ‘151 152 .
Bivd, - J: - Bi-sovnans e —— 135
Blair, Miss Mollie ......co0vvannenn e R 220
Boehm, Julian B. ........ i AR e B 220 .
Branch, Harlee .........ccovvvinnnnnnccnans 139 139 140 140
Brown, Mrs. JOB. ...ocvvviinenecncnncnnnnnes 220 . N
Butler, R. P. ...0ovvvvnnnnnns e ieeeneeann 148 148
“Bitler: B2 AB68.) o cunscen cmanses sow vap o 221 =
- Compbell; Wade ..o couisain wawdves ses vosvae 105 105 106 106
Carson, Miss Irene ........ccooeevnnnnnannns 174
Carson, Miss Rebecea ......cccvvvvvnvraenns 220 "
Cgrson;, Mrs. B M. .. coo vonsamemmnswan sooss 118 - 118
Oarson, Mrs. DL W cue cavions snsmoasan see 221 |
Oastro; I M o cosnmmn v s suwsnmevin ses 153
Chambers, Phillip ..........cooviuunnnn e 132 132
Childs, Dr. Leroy W. ...covvvnveernnnssnnnss 165 166
Cooper, V. S. ....... xceaadiiRadiy R oy N I )
Coplan, Nathan— .+ =T TR ETE 137
Coplan, Nathan (Rec.) ........ccvvvvvvvnnnn _ 220
Oowin; Miss O0PR «osvs socvses sopwss son saios 117 117 ==
Craig, Ed. .......... i GeaE S A SR -~ 135
Craig, Robert ......ccccococecnssscnsocnns : 135 -
Craig, Samuel ...........coeivuvunnn. 3% wEe 130 — >
Darley; N. V.. oconi ras soivih nomaiod somwins sines - 220 i
Denham, Harry .......... ST - 108 109
Denham, Mrs. Georgia ........ivovennennnns. 220
Dickerson, Miss Opie........... e s sesen 171 111 —
Dittlor; AleX .« .ceivnisonssnssssisesnvsnsses 220 ——
. Dittler, Emil ............ LB S e s ™ 220
Einstein, In iianssaesies voesions swsnessse .. 220 )
Field, Miss Jennie May .......cvvevcueneens 220 _
Finley, John ......cccccieceevccscsansanes = 142 142 142
Fischer, Julins A. ....c.cccvievorcccncngesos -152 152 B i
Fitzpatrick, BE. E.......... O — oie3s 220 o
Fleming, Miss Bessie ..........ccoviiiinnany 173 178
. Flowers, Miss Eula May............. e s _ 104 104
Flowers, Miss Eula May......7. 0. .o0teee. 171 1T1
Foster, Miss Minnie ...... SR LU SRS —-220 .
N NG ' R RSB C— A S . s 200 -
 BOXK; I v weneines sasves s § e useresaminion 220 -
- Frank, Leo M., Statement............. - 174

= et xliv




‘Witnesses—Continued

Frank, Mrs. Rae

Freeman, Mrs. Emma Clarke.......
Freeman, Mrs. Emma Clarke (Ree.)
Fuss, Miss Julia

Fuss, Miss Julia (Ree.)

Gershon, Joseph
- Glogowski, Mrs. H.
Goldstein, M. F. . ...- o~
"Goldstein, M. J. ............... SRR s
Goodman, Miss Lillie M. :
Gottheimer, Harry
~ Greenfield, A. D. ....... B0 G ORI e -
Guthman, Al ek

Haas, Mrs. C. L
Haas, Isaac .

Hall, Miss Corinthia
Hall, Miss Corinthia
Hall, Miss Mattie
Hamilton, I. M.
Hancock, Dr. Thomas
Harris, Mrs. A. 1.
Hatchett, Miss Mary
Hatchett, Miss Willie
Hays, Miss Ida
Hays, Miss Velma
Heilbron, Fred
Heyman, Arthur
Hinchey, H. J.
Hixon, Annie (c¢)
Hollis, W. T. .
Holloway, A. C.
Holmes, Miss Ida
Hopkins, Daisy
Howell, Miss Annie
Hunter, Joel C. ...... T e 5

Jackson, Miss Irene
_Johnson, Mrs. W. R.
Jomes, A. J.oovviiiiiinninnns
- Jones, John Ashley

Joneﬂ, Mm- 0. ------ 1T-—-—v—-—-—;—u—|—_l—a—.—'i"to_“—ooTo LR

Kauffman, I. U. :
- Kendrick, Dr. W. 8.
... Kennedy, Miss Magnolia
Kerns,Miss Helen . .,
Klein, Mrs. Dan ........ovvvvvvenivennnnnees

xlv. .




Witnebaea:Continued

— : ' D -0
~ Klein, Milton . 5yt 137 137
Klein, Milton (Rec.).......covvviivrnnnnnan. - 220
Klein, Miss Ray : 220
Kriegshaber, V. H - 169 - 169

Lane, Alfred Loring 167

Lasher, Herbert - 168 168

Leach, LR, .....ooovviiiiiinninnns, —— 153 158

Lee, Charlie .- : 133 - 133

Lee, Charlie (Re€.).......cvvveeennnn. . 222

Levy, Mrs. A. P, ......... ST ' 114 114 114
. Lewis, Harry ' 168

Loeb, Cohen 116 116

Loeb, Miss Helen 220

Loeb, Julian 116 -

Loeb, Marcus ....... § sinie s wiele e Se B0 veo 220

Maelntyro, D L o ino6 s ses sovavien sas v 220
0T T P T § e e R AR 220
. McCord, Miss Marjorie . ! : 220

MecCrary, Truman (ec) 130

MecKnight, Minola (c) ' ; 109

MecMurty, Miss Lena _ 220

MeWorth, W.D. . v vesasmmssonsse s v 141

Mann, Alonzo ... _ - 122

Marcus, Mrs. A. E ; 127

Marcus, Mrs. M. ......... ol Kk ks v wniswe s 127

Marx, Dr. David . - 169
~ Marx, Mrs. David | 220

Matthews, J. C. ........... fowisie s veww e e 122

Matthews, W. M o 83

May, Mrs. Martin 220

Mayfield, Miss Emily 219

Mayfield, Miss Jennie : : 220

Meyer, M. W. .......coermmeorrrrs 220

Michael, Jerome e i 115
- Michael, Mrs. M. G. ........c.c0vvvinvnnnnnn. 114

Minar, John M 140

Mitehell, WM. o oon Toion ssninsiog iowiaes v 135

Montag, Mrs. Adolph 7 170

Montag, Sigmund ; 128

Moss, L. H. ............... TR R 4 220

Moss, Mrs. L. H. ................... § weniess 220

© Nash, Phillip ' wsso] 167
_Nix’;D.‘ J. o S e R RN I PR l.‘_l_._‘._‘..l._.__l_l_l————-—Jal




- xlvil

__/' —
&
_‘ . Witnesses—Continued —
.- | . D o RD RO
Olmstead, Dr. J. C. —vvvvvvvvnnn i e is 161 162 '
Osborne, Miss Annie ..........co0vvenennnnn - 220 '
“"Owens, Dr. Wm, ............ B i s SRR g 143 145 147
___ Pappenheimer, Osear ................... S gt 125
Parmalen, Mg, & Ouiwani v vow san semsaes s 170 170
Patriok, J . coos i vioes v 56m 0,595 waiessim i 135 B
Patterson, B. L. ..... ... S e e 135
Payne, Frank ................ P SO 131 132
Pivke, MIss MAYY: ..o vostviwon savemmnmmssribnss 119 8 119
Phrk, Mg MAYY. .. vouinmassn pony aes aassns 221
Pollard, C; B. . v i L ' 99 99 100
Pride, A¥Ehur (8) .o inu svmn svs sios s s o 134 134 134
Quinn, Lemmie ..........s T T e T . 106 107 . 108
X ‘Rice, M. S. ..ottt it 220
Rosenberg, Mrs. Mollie ..................... 220
" Behiff, B, Q. . oo v v odow sas s wissg paw i 220 _ :
Sehiff, Herbert Q. . ovin son verin v wowwsion s 85 92 97, 98 98
—Sehiff, Herbert-G.,(Recalled for Cross-Exam.) . 100 100
Seligh; Budl : i v svs svns innavviviei o R v 110 111
Selig, Mrs. Emil ............. “esessesseenes 112 112 113
- Selig, Mrs. Emil (Ree.) .........coiivnnn... 128 128
4 Silverman, M. H. ..........cvveueninennsn, 220
Small, Migh DOYR: s i vuvsnes sweiivios w65 sisias 120 120
Smiall, Mg DOXd o i vonsss sissisns sesnes 221
Siith,; Mise. B: D v oo soisan vnnaiis s dees 220
~ Smith, Henry ......coivvviiiiiiiiinnnnnnnn. 137 137
Smith, Mrs. Minnie .........oovivnvnnennnnnn 135
Smith, Miss Minnie ... cceeees sevesee sepees : 220 -
Sommerfield, Dr. J. E. ..........ccovvninnnnn. 220
_ Sommerfield, Mrs. J.E. ............couunnn. 220
SOnI; B B wviei s i ioemoen desase Sk 169
Sont, Mo Bl A: 205 00 oo vt beile Ssiors 220
Spivey, Miss Zilla .. ... .... ... ciiernrrnennn 220
Stelker, Joe ........covvvuunnn B e 138 138 139
Stelker, Joe (Rec.) ......ccvviiiivineennnn. 221
_ Storme, My M. Y6 o aos ssosesnn avsoses sms s 220
= Stewart, Miss Ethel ............ e — 220
Strauss, L. ..ovvvverienioess o5 da EE e 128 _
Thomas, Mrs. Ella ........................ -3 2200
Thomas, K. T. ...... TR S N S 153 153
Thompson, Mrs. Mattie ....... oiaie isren s R 173 173
s 2% Todd,-John W. ............ o NP A [
# - Ursenbach, O.F. ......... ubien apsl eveee. 1950 126 ]
P2 F Ursenbach, Mrs. C. F. ........co.vuvene. e 126 . 126




Witnesses—Continued

D c RD RC _ /
Vanderhoef, Prof. J. E.......... R pow sy o 108 168 o Tt
Wardlaw, Mrs. J. J. ....... IR T LTI RYT 174 , —— =
Weinkauf, Godfrey ..........ccoviivniivnnnnn. .. 133 133 g
Westmoreland, Dr. Willis F. ................ 159 © 160 161
—White, Miss Bessie ..... ... . ....cciiurnn.. 220 -
Wildauer, Dr. B. .......coviiiiiinnennnn.. " 220 ‘
WHIBES, B 2R o Bge vrom snss v s 151 151 151
Wilson, Mes, 8, A i sos vives son i s s 220
Wolfsheimer, Mrs. Hennie .................. 115 115
Wood, B M. oo oaiesns s o sens o e cov 152 152
Word, Miss Lizzie ............... vl 220
Wright, Miss . Maude ..........coovvvnnnnnn. 220 B
Wright, Richard A. ......c.covvviiinnnnennn. 1168
Zigankl, B, oo von vmen s v wems s 8 s a0 220

TESTIMONY FOR DEFENDANT IN S8UR-

- - REBUTTAL.
Asher, S. L. ..ottt 242 242 .
Brent, T. Y. ooiviiieiieiinieneinenennns 241 241 | .
Frank, Leo M., Statement.............. ee el 242 '\,
Hootd, M8 O Tuuos son saiws vos 660 suisad os o . 242
Sinkovitz, N. ...........coveinnnn, e s 242 242
Stahl, M. E. ..........oiiiiiiiiiiininnnnn. 241 .
Wolfsheimer, Mrs. Hennie ....... SFR SR i el st WS K B s He & 115
"April 26th . ' a5
- 2:00 p. m. saw Frank at No. 387 Washington St. .................. 115
Had finished dinmer ................ccoiiiiiiiiiniiinnnnin.,. 115 " =i g
No scratches or bruises on Frank ............ & s Ko e e Ve 115
Nothing unusual about him .............iiiiiiiniiinnnnnrnnns 115
Time, How fixed. o covnean wemsame v % weaneleaE SRRl KaE S ek Wl 115
— — Avnt of Frank’s Wale: « cuuis s vunsrns svesamns sae LEEEREE i S8 SoE e 115
Wright, Richard A. : "
* Consulting engineer, Brooklyn, ...........ccoivseininiiieiens.os e 168
Frank’s character g00d .......:.c.ivuueeiiireniineeinneennnsennns 168 ! -
A ' Has known Frank four years ..............0 ,...cvvvvunnn. eyl g 168
o A At Cornell and Pratt Institute ..............................L. 168
- ' ' Classmates . . .....coviiiiiiniinnennennn. R, S R SSRTALENEATS 830 168. _ :
| ' “Yondiff”’ is Hebrew for “HOASY"....................ccvveveerns.. 124,

xlviii




	D260-b056-0934-0966
	D260-B056-0934
	D260-B056-0935
	D260-B056-0936
	D260-B056-0937
	D260-B056-0938
	D260-B056-0939
	D260-B056-0940
	D260-B056-0941
	D260-B056-0942
	D260-B056-0943
	D260-B056-0944
	D260-B056-0945
	D260-B056-0946
	D260-B056-0947
	D260-B056-0948
	D260-B056-0949
	D260-B056-0950
	D260-B056-0951
	D260-B056-0952
	D260-B056-0953
	D260-B056-0954
	D260-B056-0955
	D260-B056-0956
	D260-B056-0957
	D260-B056-0958
	D260-B056-0959
	D260-B056-0960
	D260-B056-0961
	D260-B056-0962
	D260-B056-0963
	D260-B056-0964
	D260-B056-0965
	D260-B056-0966

	D260-b056-0967-1000
	D260-B056-0967
	D260-B056-0968
	D260-B056-0969
	D260-B056-0970
	D260-B056-0971
	D260-B056-0972
	D260-B056-0973
	D260-B056-0974
	D260-B056-0975
	D260-B056-0976
	D260-B056-0977
	D260-B056-0978
	D260-B056-0979
	D260-B056-0980
	D260-B056-0981
	D260-B056-0982
	D260-B056-0983
	D260-B056-0984
	D260-B056-0985
	D260-B056-0986
	D260-B056-0987
	D260-B056-0988
	D260-B056-0989
	D260-B056-0990
	D260-B056-0991
	D260-B056-0992
	D260-B056-0993
	D260-B056-0994
	D260-B056-0995
	D260-B056-0996
	D260-B056-0997
	D260-B056-0998
	D260-B056-0999
	D260-B056-1000

	D260-b056-1001-1033
	D260-B056-1001
	D260-B056-1002
	D260-B056-1003
	D260-B056-1004
	D260-B056-1005
	D260-B056-1006
	D260-B056-1007
	D260-B056-1008
	D260-B056-1009
	D260-B056-1010
	D260-B056-1011
	D260-B056-1012
	D260-B056-1013
	D260-B056-1014
	D260-B056-1015
	D260-B056-1016
	D260-B056-1017
	D260-B056-1018
	D260-B056-1019
	D260-B056-1020
	D260-B056-1021
	D260-B056-1022
	D260-B056-1023
	D260-B056-1024
	D260-B056-1025
	D260-B056-1026
	D260-B056-1027
	D260-B056-1028
	D260-B056-1029
	D260-B056-1030
	D260-B056-1031
	D260-B056-1032
	D260-B056-1033




